
年 報

2010
A n n u A l  R e p o R t

2010



2 Corporate Profile

3 Financial Highlights

6 Chairman’s Statement

10 Management Discussion and Analysis

17 Directors and Senior Management Profile

23 Directors’ Report

33 Corporate Governance Report

36 Independent Auditor’s Report

38 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive 
  Income

39 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

41 The Company’s Statement of Financial Position

42 Consolidated Statement of Changes 
  in Equity

43 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

44 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

89 Corporate Information

Contents

Shirble Department Store holDingS (China) limiteD • aNNUaL rEPOrT 2010 1



Corporate Profile

Shirble Department Store holDingS (China) limiteD • aNNUaL rEPOrT 20102

Changsha
Changsha

Shenzhen Shanwei

Shanwei

existing stores

Shenzhen

Baoan District

Nanshan
District

Futian
District

Luohu
District

Yantian
District

Longgang
District

Shirble Department Store Holdings (China) Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited 
liability on 5 November 2008. The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “group”) are principally engaged in the 
operation of department stores in the People’s republic of China (the “prC”). The Company’s shares were listed on the Main 
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock exchange”) on 17 November 2010 (the “listing Date”).

The Group is a one of the leading and long established Shenzhen-based department store chains. It currently owns 
and operates 13 department stores, of which 11 are within Shenzhen and two are located in Changsha (the capital city 
of Hunan Province) and Shanwei (a coastal city in the eastern Guangdong Province), respectively. Most of the Group’s 
stores are having similar exterior and interior designs including layouts, colour schemes and decors, thereby enhancing 
customers’ awareness of the brand “ ”.

A broad range of merchandise is offered in the stores, including footwear, textiles, apparel, cosmetics, children’s and 
households’ goods, electrical appliances, daily consumer products and household necessities, which enables the Group 
to capture a wide and diverse range of customers. It also caters for the upper-end segment of the retail market in 
respect of certain categories of products, through offering well-known international and domestic branded products in its 
stores, to satisfy the demand of customers with relatively higher consumption power.

The Group’s department stores principally target the mid-market segment, aiming to offer its customers with a wide 
range of quality merchandise and customer-oriented services, as well as a convenient and comfortable “one-stop” 
shopping environment. It is believed that this market position enables the Group to capture high growth potential in the 
PRC retail sector.
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A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and equity of the Group for the last four financial years is set out 

below:

operating results

Year ended 31 December

RMB’000 2010 2009 2008 2007

Turnover 1,279,619 1,148,030 1,079,940 1,004,464

Profit from operations 260,966 138,341 104,416 100,421

Profit before tax 267,466 174,832 108,721 107,184

Profit attributable to equity shareholders 

 of the Company 200,082 140,304 89,516 100,747

Earnings per share (RMB per share) 

 – Basic and diluted 0.10 0.07 0.05 0.05

assets, liabilities and equity

at 31 December

RMB’000 2010 2009 2008 2007

Total assets 2,457,413 1,269,343 1,244,494 1,078,023

Total liabilities 926,369 1,007,122 831,950 754,995

Total equity 1,531,044 262,221 412,544 323,028

Note: The results and financial position of the Group for 2006 is not disclosed above as such information has not been previously 

disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated 5 November 2010.

Direct sales

Concessionaire sales

groSS SaleS proCeeDS - bY CategorY
RMB (million)

2009

945.6 909.1

2010

1,014.4 1,035.2
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groSS SaleS proCeeDS - bY proDuCt CategorY

20102009

Electronics and home appliances

Clothes, apparel and bedding

Children’s goods

Sporting and stationery goods

Food and beverages

Daily necessities and cosmetic goods

Turnover

Other operating revenue

Other net income

Direct sales

Commission from concessionaire sales

Rental income

12.5%15.1%

24.4%41.7%

12.1%14.9%

24.9%41.4%

3.2%3.2% 3.1%3.5%

turnover anD other revenue
RMB (million)

turnover bY CategorY
RMB (million)

2010

1,279.6

181.4

1.4

2009

0.2

1,148.0

85.4

1,014.4

219.9

45.3

945.6

29.9

172.5

20102009
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groSS profit anD margin of DireCt 
SaleS
RMB (million)

ConCeSSionaire SaleS anD 
CommiSSionS aS a perCentage of 
ConCeSSionaire SaleS
RMB (million)

Gross profit of direct sales

Margin of direct sales (%)

Concessionaire sales

Commission rate (%)2009

132.9

2010

141.4
909.1

2009

19.0%

1,035.2

2010

13.9%
21.2%

profit from operationS anD 
operating margin
RMB (million)

Profit from operations

Operating Margin (%)

net profit anD net profit margin
RMB (million)

Profit for the year

Net profit margin (%)

14.1%

140.3

2009

200.1

2010

15.6%

12.2%

261.0

2010

138.3

2009

20.4%

12.1%
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Profit attributable to 
equity shareholders 
of the Company 
grew by 42.6% to 
RMB200.1 million.

marKet anD buSineSS revieW

I am very pleased to present the annual results of the Group for the 

year ended 31 December 2010. 

In 2010, the PRC economy has continued to grow after the 

global recession which commenced in the second half of 2008 

and recorded gross domestic product (“gDp”) of approximately 

RMB39,798.3 billion, representing approximately 10.3% increase 

from the previous year. The per capita disposable income of urban 

residents amounted to RMB19,109 which was approximately 11.3% 

higher than that of previous year. Total retail sales of consumer 

goods for the year were approximately RMB13,691.8 billion which 

represents approximately 18.5% growth compared to previous 

year, outpacing that of the retail sector. After excluding the effect 

of inflation, the real PRC domestic consumptions expanded at an 

annual rate of approximately 14.8% since the economic rebound 

in 2009. The growth resulted from the proactive fiscal policies and 

expansionary monetary measures which improved the employment 

situation and boosted the consumers’ spending as well as the 

domestic demand in the PRC. The retail industry and the Group 

have therefore benefited from the robust development in the PRC 

economy and the increasing consumption power of consumers.
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In l ine with the economic recovery and stronger 

domest ic consumpt ion as wel l  as the Group’s  

continuous business expansion, the Group’s total 

gross sales proceeds have recorded a stable growth 

of approximately 10.5%, reaching approximately 

rMB2,049.6 million, with same store sales (“SSS”) 

growth of approximately 7.6%. Turnover increased by 

approximately 11.5% to approximately RMB1,279.6 

million and profit attributable to equity shareholders 

of the Company grew by approximately 42.6% to 

approximately RMB200.1 million.

buSineSS revieW

Store expansion

In 2010, the Group further strengthened its presence 

in Shenzhen with the opening of two new department 

stores with an aggregate gross floor area (“gfa”) of 

approximately 49,950 sq. m. in Bao’an district, i.e. the 

Shajing store in August 2010 and the Minzhi store in 

December 2010 respectively. The two new stores not 

only share the same features of existing stores with 

a wide array of supermarket goods, daily necessities, 

cosmetics, clothes and apparels, bedding products, 

sportswear, stationeries and electrical and home 

appliances, but have added new leisure facilities such 

as 3D movie theatres and more food and beverage 

vendors. The Minzhi store, in particular, differentiates 

itself with its Taiwan-themed food court, a four-metre 

long Vermaport trademark shopping cart conveyor 

imported from Germany and the Group’s first 24-hour 

convenience store to provide patrons with a fresh 

shopping experience.

Together with the Shajing and Minzhi store, the Group 

had a total of 13 department stores as at 31 December 

2010, including 11 stores within Shenzhen, one in 

Shanwei and one in Changsha. The total GFA of the 13 

stores is approximately 208,684 sq. m., representing a 

year-on-year increase of approximately 31.5%.

enhancement of vip program

During the year 2010, the Group continued to enhance 

its VIP customer program through services, promotion 

and marketing activities to boost customers’ loyalty 

and attract new members. As at 31 December 2010, 

the Group had approximately 500,000 VIP customers, 

and sales from these VIP customers accounted for 

approximately 66.5% of the Group’s total gross sales 

proceeds.

pilot 24-hour Convenience Store

The Group is currently exploring the convenience 

store model, and in November 2010, the first 24-hour 

convenience store was set up right next to the Minzhi 

store as a trial operation. The board (the “board”) 

of directors (the “Directors”) believe that the strong 

duplication ability of this model may diversify the 

existing retail format and help the Group’s brand to 

penetrate further in Shenzhen.
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new listing

The Company was successfully listed on the Main 

Board of the Stock Exchange on 17 November 2010. 

The Group will utilize the proceeds from the listing 

in the way as disclosed in the prospectus of the 

Company dated 5 November 2010 (the “prospectus”) 

to strengthen its prominent position in the PRC retail 

industry.

future planS anD outlooK

Looking forward, the Directors bel ieve that the 

department store retailers business will benefit from 

the rapid economic growth in the PRC and the rise 

in domestic demand. The Group will strive to further 

strengthen its market leading position in Shenzhen, as 

well as to anchor in nearby regions.

new Stores opening plan

The Group targets to solidify its leadership position 

by establishing eight to nine new stores, increasing 

the aggregate GFA to approximately 400,000 sq. m. 

by 2012. With development rooted in Shenzhen, the 

Group intends to explore more locations in Shenzhen, 

while expanding to neighboring regions such as 

Guangzhou, Dongguan, Shanwei and other second to 

third-tier regions, and beyond to Changsha with the 

aim to extend its geographical reach throughout PRC.

Two popular shopping spots with an aggregate 

GFA under the Group’s operation and management 

of approximately 72,800 sq. m. in Humen Town, 

Dongguan, Guangdong Province have been chosen, 

and related lease agreements have been entered into 

with independent third parties in November 2010. The 

stores are expected to commence business in 2011.

The Group is also considering to acquire a property in 

Shenzhen for opening a new store by 2013.

Based on the successful operations experience, the 

Group will continue to follow its hybrid “one-stop shop” 

model offering customers a comprehensive range of 

merchandise and services, as well as a convenient and 

comfortable “one-stop” shopping environment. On top of 

the development of its core hybrid model, the Group will 

also be exploring the possibility to diversify into different 

retail formats to capitalise the business potentials in 

a more efficient and effective manner. The Group has 

already opened one 24-hour convenience store at its 

Minzhi store, and one of the Humen stores to be opened 

in 2011 will be in the format of shopping mall.

brand enhancement and renovation plan

In order to enhance customers’ brand awareness and 

shopping experiences, the Group will focus on promoting 

the brand through renovation of existing stores. Starting 

from 2011, the first stage renovation plan will focus 

mainly on the uplifting of outer wall and ancillary facilities 

of existing stores. Upon successful completion of the 

first stage, the Group will commence on rebranding 

assessment and implementation formulation.
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upgrade and enhancement of information 
technology System

To cope with the Group’s business expansion, a new 

enterprise resource planning (ERP) system, a customer 

relationship management (CRM) system, a point-of-

sale (POS) system and a supply chain management 

system will be implemented. Through these system 

upgrades, accuracy of the execution of future plans 

will be enhanced via multi-faceted analysis, while the 

automation of information technology systems will 

increase security and improve operational efficiency, 

including improvement in inventory management and 

inventory turnover. The enhancement of systems 

also opens up the possibility for a compatible online 

shopping element to increase customer flow.

The Group has already commenced the upgrading 

process, and the f i rst stage is expected to be 

completed in 2011. Upon completion of the upgrading 

and enhancement of information technology systems, 

it is believed that the Group’s overall operational 

efficiency and management control will be improved, 

which will further strengthen the Group’s competitive 

advantages.

establishment of a large-scale, modernized 
Shenzhen Distribution Centre and Staff 
training base

In order to enhance the Group’s distribution capability 

and services, the Group plans to construct a new 

Shenzhen distribution centre with GFA of approximately 

53,500 sq. m. and a staff training centre with GFA of 

approximately 1,500 sq. m., with operation expected to 

commence by end of 2012. The new distribution centre 

will be equipped with more advanced facilities, which 

will shorten the delivery time and enhance inventory 

control and management, thereby improving operational 

efficiency and lowering cost. The new staff training 

base will facilitate comprehensive training to staff, boost 

working efficiency and improve quality of services.

Development of private label products

In view of the high proportion of turnover derived 

from direct sales, the Group will focus on developing 

private label brands to increase profitability. Having 

introduced its first private label brand in 2010, the 

Group wil l extend the categories of private label 

products, diversify product range and launch marketing 

campaigns to increase its market share and optimize 

product portfolio.

potential m&a opportunities

On top of the above, the Group will continue to look for 

potential acquisition opportunities to further advance 

its footprint in the PRC, as well as to search for 

appropriate investment opportunities that will provide 

synergy to the existing business.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to take this 

opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to all 

management and employees, business partners and 

customers of the Group for their continuous support to 

the Group. In addition, I would like to thank all of the 

Company’s shareholders and investors for their ongoing 

support. We are all very excited about the Group’s 

growth, and we are confident that the Group will make 

further progress and deliver good value to shareholders 

as a result of continuing economic growth in the PRC.

Yang Xiangbo

Chairman

24 March 2011
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operating performanCe

total gross sales proceeds

The Group’s tota l gross sa les proceeds ( represent ing the 

sum of revenue from direct sales and total sales proceeds 

from concessionaire sales at our department stores) grew to 

approximately RMB2,049.6 million, representing an increase of 

approximately 10.5% from approximately RMB1,854.7 million in 

2009. The increase was mainly attributable to the SSS growth of 

approximately 7.6%, inclusion of full year sales of the Longzhu store 

opened in 2009 as well as the sales derived from the newly opened 

Shajing and Minzhi stores.

SSS growth increased to approximately 7.6% for the 2010 as 

compared to negative growth of approximately 2.1% recorded 

in 2009. The significant improvement was mainly attributable to 

the recovery in sales performance of the Jingtian, Mingxing and 

Hongbao stores after completion of road construction activities 

nearby the stores and stronger sales in the Jufu and Longgang 

stores due to increase in customer flow from residential apartments 

near these two stores.

Revenue from direct sales amounted to approximately RMB1,014.4 

mill ion, while total sales proceeds from concessionaire sales 

amounted to approximately RMB1,035.2 million, accounting for 

approximately 49.5% and 50.5%, respectively of the Group’s total 

gross sales proceeds.

Gross Sales 
Proceeds rose 
by 10.5% to 
RMB2,049.6 million
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The following table sets out the Group’s total gross sales proceeds derived from the broad categories by which the 

Group manages its merchandise:

Year ended 31 December

2010 2009

rmb’ million % RMB’ million %

Electronics and home appliances 255.4 12.5 223.8 12.1

Clothes, apparel and bedding 500.7 24.4 462.4 24.9

Children’s goods 65.3 3.2 59.5 3.2

Sporting and stationery goods 63.9 3.1 64.2 3.5

Food and beverages 854.5 41.7 767.9 41.4

Daily necessities and cosmetic goods 309.8 15.1 276.9 14.9

2,049.6 100.0 1,854.7 100.0

groSS SaleS proCeeDS

Direct sales

Concessionaire sales

2009 2010

50.5%49.0% 49.5%51.0%
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turnover

The Group’s turnover amounted to approximately 

RMB1,279.6 mil l ion, representing an increase of 

approximately 11.5% as compared to approximately 

RMB1,148.0 million in 2009. The increase was primarily 

due to the growth in turnover generated from both 

direct sales and concessionaire sales.

Direct sales increased by approximately 7.3% to 

approximately RMB1,014.4 mil l ion in 2010 from 

approximately RMB945.7 million in 2009, mainly due to 

the opening of two new stores in 2010, improvement 

in sales for the Jufu and Longgang stores as a result 

of increase in customer flow from the surrounding 

residential apartments and inclusion of full year sales 

of the Longzhu store. Direct sales as a percentage of 

the Group’s total turnover was approximately 79.3% in 

2010 as compared to approximately 82.4% in 2009.

Commission from concessionaire sales increased by 

approximately 27.5% to approximately RMB219.9 

million in 2010 from approximately RMB172.5 million in 

2009, mainly due to increase in gross sales proceeds 

of concessionaire sales from effective promotional 

strategies, increase in selling price of concessionaire 

Direct Sales

Commission from concessionaire sales

Rental income

turnover bY CategorY
RMB (million) 1,014.4

219.9

45.3

2010

945.6

29.9

172.5

2009
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products, as well as improvement in commission rate 

during the year. The commission rate of concessionaire 

sales was approximately 21.2% as compared to 

approximately 19.0% in 2009. Commission from 

concessionaire sales as a percentage of the Group’s 

total turnover was approximately 17.2% in 2010 as 

compared to approximately 15.0% in 2009.

Rental income increased by approximately 51.7% 

to approximately RMB45.3 mil l ion in 2010 from 

approximately RMB29.9 million in 2009, mainly due 

to the increase in sub-lease rental income contributed 

mainly by the Longzhu store and the increase in leased 

areas during the year. Rental income as a percentage 

of the Group’s total turnover was approximately 3.5% 

as compared to approximately 2.6% in 2009.

other operating revenue

Other operating revenue increased substantially by 

approximately 112.3% to approximately RMB181.4 

million in 2010 from approximately RMB85.4 million in 

2009, mainly because of additional advertisement and 

promotion income earned as a result of an increase 

in promotional campaigns and activities as well as the 

change in charging format of credit card handling fee 

during the year.

other net income

Other net  income increased by approx imate ly 

641.7% to approximately RMB1.4 mill ion in 2010 

from approximately RMB0.2 million in 2009, mainly 

attributable to the increase in compensation received 

from suppliers for violation of contract terms.

purchases of and changes in inventories

Purchase of and changes in inventories amounted to 

approximately RMB873.0 million in 2010, representing 

an increase of approximately 7.4% as compared 

to approximately RMB812.7 million in 2009, in line 

with the increase in turnover from direct sales. As a 

percentage of turnover from direct sales, purchases of 

and changes in inventories was approximately 86.1% in 

2010 as compared to approximately 85.9% in 2009.

personnel costs

Personnel costs increased by approximately 12.4% 

to approximately RMB98.5 mil l ion in 2010 from 

approximately RMB87.6 million in 2009, primarily due 

to the recruitment of new employees for the Group’s 

newly opened Shajing and Minzhi stores.
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Depreciation

Depreciation decreased by approximately 10.3% 

to approximately RMB31.2 mil l ion in 2010 from 

approximately RMB34.8 mill ion in 2009, primarily 

attributable to the decrease in depreciation for the 

Group’s existing plant, property and equipment which 

had been recognised in previous years, as well as the 

disposal of the Group’s old distribution centre in August 

2009.

operating lease rental expense

Opera t i ng l ease ren ta l  expense i nc reased by 

approximately 20.3% to approximately RMB108.5 

million in the year ended 31 December 2010 from 

approximately RMB90.2 million in the year ended 31 

December 2009. This increase was mainly attributable 

to the additional operating leases the Group entered 

into for the Shajing store and Minzhi store, as well as 

increase in rental expenses for the Jingtian store.

other expenses

Other expenses, which mainly comprised ut i l i ty 

expenses, advertising, marketing, promotion and 

related expenses, other tax expenses, bank charges 

and maintenance expenses, increased by approximately 

28.9% to approximately RMB90.3 mil l ion in the 

year ended 31 December 2010 from approximately 

RMB70.0 million in the year ended 31 December 2009. 

This was primarily due to the increase in number of 

stores in 2010.

profit from operations

As a resu l t  o f  the reasons ment ioned above, 

the Group’s pro f i t  f rom opera t ions surged by 

approximately 88.6% to approximately RMB261.0 

million in the year ended 31 December 2010 from 

approximately RMB138.3 million in the year ended 31 

December 2009, primarily as a result of an increase 

in other operat ing revenue and the increase in 

concessionaire sales of fashion and clothing which 

has a higher commission rate than other categories of 

products.

finance income

Finance income decreased by approximately 78.3% 

to approximately RMB8.2 million in the year ended 

31 December 2010 from approximately RMB37.7 
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million in the year ended 31 December 2009, primarily 

attributable to the significant decrease in net gain on 

held-for-trading investments in 2010.

finance costs

Finance costs increased by approximately 37.6% to 

approximately RMB1.7 million in the year ended 31 

December 2010 from approximately RMB1.2 million 

in the year ended 31 December 2009, primari ly 

attributable to the increase in interest paid for the 

outstanding bank borrowings.

income tax expense

Income tax expense amounted to approximately 

RMB67.4 mi l l i on ,  represent ing an increase o f 

approximately 95.2% from approximately RMB34.5 

million in the year ended 31 December 2009. The 

effective tax rate applicable to the Group was 25.2%, 

which was a result of the increase in the enterprise 

income tax rate applicable to Shenzhen from 20% 

to 22%. In addition, pursuant to the PRC Corporate 

Income Tax Law, the Group is liable to withholding 

taxes on d iv idends d is t r ibuted by subs id iar ies 

established in China. The applicable tax rate for the 

Group is 10%.

profit attributable to equity shareholders of 
the Company

As a result of the aforementioned, profit attributable 

to equity shareholders of the Company increased by 

42.6% from approximately RMB140.3 million in the year 

ended 31 December 2009 to approximately RMB200.1 

million in the year ended 31 December 2010, which is 

close to the forecast profit of the Group as set forth in 

the Prospectus.

liQuiDitY anD finanCial reSourCeS

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s cash and cash 

equivalents amounted to approximately RMB1,736.0 

mil l ion, increased by approximately RMB1,418.1 

million from approximately RMB317.9 million as at 31 

December 2009, mainly due to the net proceeds (the 

“net proceeds”) received from the initial public offering 

of the shares of the Company in November 2010. The 

cash and cash equivalents, which were in Hong Kong 

dollars and Renminbi, were held at banks in Hong 
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Kong as short-term deposits for interest income and 

deposited with banks in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group did not have any 

outstanding bank borrowing (2009: RMB132.0 million). 

The decrease was due to the repayment of bank loans 

during the year.

net current assets and net assets

The net current assets of the Group as at 31 December 

2010 were approx imate ly RMB1,263.9 mi l l ion , 

representing an increase of approximately RMB1,225.9 

million. The net assets of the Group as at 31 December 

2010 increased to approximately RMB1,531.0 million, 

representing an increase of approximately RMB1,268.8 

mil l ion. The increase was mainly due to the Net 

Proceeds.

pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2010, no asset of the Group was 

pledged to any bank or lender.

Contingent liabilitieS

As at 31 December 2010, the Group did not have any 

significant contingent liabilities.

foreign eXChange eXpoSure

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of 

its transactions settled in RMB. Certain cash and bank 

balances of the Group are denominated in HKD and 

the Company pays dividends in HKD which exposes 

the Group to foreign exchange risks arising from the 

translation of HKD against RMB. For the year ended 

31 December 2010, the Group recorded a net foreign 

exchange loss of approximately RMB6.0 million. The 

Group has not used any forward contracts, currency 

borrowings or other means to hedge its foreign 

exchange exposure.

emploYeeS

As at 31 December 2010, the total number of 

employees of the Group was 2,763. Salaries, bonuses 

and benefits are determined with reference to market 

conditions and the performance, qualifications and 

experience of individual employees.

uSe of net proCeeDS

On 17 November 2010, the shares of the Company 

(the “Shares”) were listed on the Main Board of the 

Stock Exchange and the Group raised Net Proceeds 

of approximately HKD1,313.4 million (after deducting 

underwriting fees and related expenses). Up to 31 

December 2010, the Group had not utilised any of the 

Net Proceeds and the Net Proceeds were deposited in 

reputable financial institutions. The Directors intend to 

apply the Net Proceeds in the manner as described in 

the Prospectus.
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eXeCutive DireCtorS

mr. Yang Xiangbo, Executive Chairman and a 

member of Remuneration Committee

Mr. YANG Xiangbo, aged 48, was appointed as 

a Di rector on 5 November 2008. Mr. YANG is 

also a director and chairman of Shenzhen Shirble 

Department Store Co., Ltd. (“Shirble Department 

Store (Shenzhen)”) and Shenzhen Shirble Chain 

Store Limited Liabil ity Company (“Shirble Chain 

Store”), a director of Shirble Department Store (Hong 

Kong) Limited (“Shirble Department Store (hong 

Kong)”) and Shirble Department Store Investment 

Limited (“Shirble hong Kong”), and an executive 

d i rector of Shenzhen Shi rb le Mingx ing Trading 

Company Limited (“Shirble mingxing trading”), 

Changsha Shirble apparel Company Limited (“Shirble 

apparel”), Shenzhen Xiangzhixuan Trading Company 

Limited (“Shirble Xiangzhixuan”), Shenzhen Ruizhuo 

Trading Company Limited (“Shirble ruizhuo”) and 

Shenzhen Yuzhix iang Trading Company L imited 

(“Shirble Yuzhixiang”). Mr. YANG is the founding 

investor and is responsible for formulating the overall 

business development strategies and providing the 

overall management directions of the Group. From 

1984 to 1990, Mr. YANG was engaged in trading of 

products including daily necessities and construction 

materials in Guangzhou and Shenzhen. In 1990, Mr. 

YaNG established Shirble Holdings Limited (which 

is not part of the Group). From 1992 to late 1995, 

Mr. YANG operated a department store in Shenzhen 

named Dajiangnan Shopping Mall. Mr. YANG ceased to 

operate Dajiangnan Shopping Mall in late 1995. From 

1992 to 2006, Mr. YANG was a director of Haerbin 

Hatou Investment, which has been l isted on the 

Shanghai Stock Exchange since 1994, the principal 

business of which is the provision of electricity and 

heat. In late 1995, through his savings, Mr. YANG 

established Shirble Department Store (Shenzhen) with 

the first department store in Shenzhen opened in 

January 1996. Mr. YANG served as a director of China 

Merchants Bank from 1993 to 1995 and a director of 

China Minsheng Bank from 1995 to 2003. Mr. YANG 

has been a member of the eighth, ninth and tenth 

sessions of the National Committee of the Chinese 

People’s Political Consultative Conference. In 1993, 

Mr. YANG was granted a honorary doctor’s degree in 

engineering from Haerbin Institute of Technology. Mr. 

YANG is the father of Mr. YANG Ti Wei and the uncle 

of Mr. ZHU Bijiang, both being members of the Group’s 

senior management team. Mr. YANG is a director of 

Shirble Department Store Limited (“Shirble bvi”) 

and Xiang rong Investment Limited (“Xiang rong 

investment”), both being the Company’s substantial 

shareholders.
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madam Yang Xiaomei, Chief Executive Officer and 

Executive Director and a member of Nomination 

Committee

Madam YANG Xiaomei, aged 54, was appointed as 

a Director on 16 March 2010. Madam YANG is also 

the vice chairman and general manager of Shirble 

Department Store (Shenzhen), a director and general 

manager of Shirble Chain Store, the general manager 

of Shirble Mingxing Trading, Shirble Xiangzhixuan, 

Shirble Ruizhuo and Shirble Yuzhixiang, and the 

person in charge of each of the Group’s department 

stores. Madam YANG is one of the co-founders of 

the Group with Mr. YANG Xiangbo, and is responsible 

for the Group’s overall development and strategic 

plans and the formulation and implementation of 

the Group’s operational plans. Madam YANG is also 

responsible for the Group’s new development projects, 

the opening and location of the new stores and 

formulating the Group’s business and organisational 

structure. Madam YANG joined the Group in May 

1995 and since then, she has been the general 

manager of Shirble Department Store (Shenzhen). 

Madam YANG graduated from a three-year full-time 

course on commercial enterprise management from 

Nanjing City Business Vocational Training Mid-Level 

College in 1986 and a three-year course on economics 

management from the Institute of the Party School of 

the Communist Party of China in 1991. Madam YANG 

has extensive experience in retail industry for over 

30 years, particularly in management of department 

stores. Madam YANG started her career in the retail 

business as a management officer of a State-owned 

tobacco and liquor company in Nanjing during the 

period between 1975 and 1983. During the period 

between 1986 and 1992, Madam YANG was a 

manager in a State-owned department store in Nanjing 

in which Madam YANG gained experience in retail 

business management. From 1992, Madam YANG 

has been working in Shenzhen, initially as deputy 

general manager of Dajiangnan Shopping Mall. In 

1995, Madam YANG assisted Mr. YANG Xiangbo in the 

establishment of Shirble Department Store (Shenzhen) 

and subsequently in the same year became the general 

manager of Shirble Department Store (Shenzhen). 

Madam YANG received a number of awards for her 

contribution to the retail industry including the “Top 

ten figures for promoting the retail industry” in 2007 

by Shenzhen retail Business association and “Top 

Ten Outstanding Female Entrepreneurs of Shenzhen” 

and “100 Outstanding Entrepreneurs in Shenzhen 

in Commemoration of 30 Years of Reform” in 2008 

by Shenzhen Enterprise Confederation and Shenzhen 

Entrepreneur Associat ion. Madam YANG was a 

representative of the National People’s Congress in 

Nanjing during the period between 1983 and 1985. 

Starting from 1997, Madam YANG is the vice chairman 

of Shenzhen Retail Business Association. Madam 

YaNG is a director of Homey Enterprises Limited 

(“homey enterprises”), a substantial shareholder of 

the Company.

inDepenDent non-eXeCutive DireCtorS

ms. Zhao Jinlin, the Chairperson of the Audit 

Committee and a member of  the Nominat ion 

Committee

Ms. ZHaO Jinlin, aged 42, was appointed as an 

independent non-executive Director on 18 June 2010. 

Ms. ZHaO obtained a bachelor’s degree in mechanical 

engineering from the Xian Jiaotong University in 

1989, a master’s degree in accountancy from the 

Southwestern University of Finance and Economics 

in 1995 and a doctor’s degree in accountancy from 

the Jinan University in 2005. From 1995 to 2006, Ms. 

ZHaO worked in the Local Tax Bureau of Shenzhen 
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and was responsible for providing guidance on tax 

collection and tax policies. Since 2006, Ms. ZHaO 

has been engaged in teaching and research work at 

the Faculty of Economics of the Shenzhen University, 

special ising in f inance management and taxation 

management, and is now a professor in accounting 

and an instructor of postgraduate students. From 

2006 to 2007, Ms. ZHaO provided financial advice 

to a factory in Shenzhen. Ms. ZHaO has also been 

an academic commit tee member o f the China 

In ternat iona l  Taxat ion Research Inst i tu te s ince 

August 2008, a committee member of the Shenzhen 

International Taxation Research Institute since March 

2004 and a committee member of the Shenzhen Local 

Taxation Research Institute.

mr. Chen fengliang, the Chairperson of the 

Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit 

Committee

Mr. CHEN Fengliang, aged 37, was appointed as an 

independent non-executive Director on 18 June 2010. 

Mr. CHEN obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics 

from the Inner Mongolia University in 1995. From 

1995 to 1998, Mr. CHEN was a planning officer in 

the planning department of the Yike Zhao League 

branch of The Agricultural Bank of China. From 1998 

to 2001, Mr. CHEN studied at the Graduate School of 

the People’s Bank of China and obtained a master’s 

degree in economics in 2001. From 2001 to 2003, 

Mr. CHEN was the secretary to the president’s office 

of China Eagle Securities Company Limited. From 

2003 to 2005, Mr. CHEN was a manager of risk 

control of China Eagle Asset Management Company 

Limited. Since 2006, Mr. CHEN has been a director 

of investment of Shanghai Sino-V Asset Management 

Company Limited.

mr. Jiang hongkai ,  the Chai rperson of the 

Nomination Committee and members of the Audit 

Committee and the Remuneration Committee

Mr. JIANG Hongkai, aged 45, was appointed as an 

independent non-executive Director on 18 June 2010. 

Mr. JIANG obtained a bachelor of science degree in 

chemistry from South China Normal School in 1986. 

From 1986 to 1994, Mr. JIANG was a high school 

teacher. In 1994, Mr. JIANG became qualified as a 

lawyer in China after passing an examination required 

for admission as a PRC lawyer. From 1994 to 2003, Mr. 

JIaNG worked as a lawyer in Guangdong Jihe Law Firm. 

Since 2003, Mr. JIANG has been working as a lawyer in 

the King & Capital (Shenzhen) Law Firm (formerly known 

as the Shenzhen branch of King & Capital Law Firm.

Senior management

mr. li Zuolin, aged 42, is the Group’s Vice President. 

Mr. LI joined the Group in May 1995 and has been the 

Deputy General Manager of Shirble Department Store 

(Shenzhen) since January 1996. Mr. LI is one of the 

founding members of the Group’s core management 

team and is actively involved in the management of 

the department stores and implementation of relevant 

management policies in the areas of administration, 

procurement, sales and marketing, implementation of 

the annual plans and budgets and establishment of 

new department stores and other initiatives. Mr. LI has 

more than 18 years of experience in the retail industry 

in China. Mr. LI joined the retail industry as the office 

manager and the manger of business development of 

Dajiangnan Shopping Mall in Shenzhen during the period 

between 1992 and 1995. Mr. LI graduated from a three-

year full-time course on heat supply and ventilation from 

the Haerbin Construction Workers University in 1992.
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mr. Yang ti Wei, aged 24, is the Group’s Vice 

President. Mr. YANG Ti Wei joined the Group in June 

2009 and is principally responsible for the overall 

strategic development, operat ional and logist ics 

management, information technology infrastructure 

planning and coordination of marketing and promotional 

activities of the Group. Mr. YANG Ti Wei is a director of 

Shirble Department Store (Shenzhen), and a supervisor 

of Shirble Chain Store, Changsha Shirble Department 

Store Limits Liability Company (“Shirble Department 

Store (Changsha)”), Shirble Mingxing Trading, Shirble 

Xiangzhixuan, Shirble Ruizhuo, Shirble Yuzhixiang and 

Shirble Apparel. Mr. YANG Ti Wei obtained a bachelor’s 

degree in business management from the University 

of Surrey in 2010. Mr. YANG Ti Wei is the son of Mr. 

YANG Xiangbo.

ms. Chan Chore man, germaine, aged 31, is the 

Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Investor 

Relationship Manager of the Company. Ms. CHAN is 

responsible for overseeing the overall financial and 

corporate governance matters of the Group. Ms. CHAN 

obtained a bachelor’s degree in accounting from the 

Hong Kong University of Science and Technology 

in 2002. Prior to joining the Group in July 2010, 

Ms. CHAN has over five years of experience in the 

investment banking sector. Ms. CHAN started her 

investment banking career with Mega Capital (Asia) 

Company Limited in which she spent more than three 

years from August 2004 to January 2008. During the 

period between January 2008 and June 2010, Ms. 

CHAN was initially an associate and subsequently 

promoted to be an assistant vice president of the 

investment banking department of Daiwa Capital 

Markets Hong Kong Limited, focusing on corporate 

finance transactions including initial public offering and 

other financial and compliance advisory matters. Ms. 

CHAN has two years of experience in the accounting 

and tax department at Ernst and Young between 2002 

and 2004. Ms. CHAN has been a member of the Hong 

Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 

2006.

ms. huang bihui, aged 39, is the Group’s Director 

of Finance. Ms. HUaNG is principally responsible for 

overseeing all the accounting, finance and budget 

matters of Shirble Department Store (Shenzhen). 

In 1996, Ms. HUaNG graduated from a three-year 

part-time Professional English for Higher Education 

course organised by Guangdong Foreign Language 

and Foreign Trade University. In January 1996, Ms. 

HUaNG joined Shirble Department Store (Shenzhen) 

as a supervisor of the finance department and was 

subsequently promoted to be a finance manager before 

becoming the Director of Finance in 2005. In 2009, 

Ms. HUaNG received a master’s degree in business 

administration from the Shanghai University of Finance 

and Economics.

mr. Zhu bijiang, aged 38, is the Group’s Director 

of Procurement. Mr. ZHU is also a director of Shirble 

Chain Store and an executive director of Shirble 

Department Store (Changsha). Mr. ZHU graduated 

from a four-year part-time course on laws organised 

by Tongji University in 2006. Mr. ZHU joined Shirble 

Department Store (Shenzhen) in August 1995 as a 

procurement manager and has been promoted to 

be the Director of Procurement since January 2008, 

responsible for formulating the annual procurement 

p lan, sa les target , sa les programmes and s i te 
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operation plans, and development and management 

of customers. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. ZHU 

worked as a manager of Dajiangnan Shopping Mall in 

Shenzhen during the period between 1991 and 1995 

and at that time, Mr. ZHU was involved in procurement 

and merchandising activities of the department store. 

Mr. ZHU is a nephew of Mr. YaNG Xiangbo.

ms. Wang baozhen, aged 41, is the Group’s Director 

of Administrat ion. Ms. WANG is responsible for 

overseeing the general administration management and 

the public relation matters of the Group. Ms. WANG 

obtained a bachelor’s degree in history from the Capital 

Normal University in 1991. Ms. WaNG joined the Group 

in May 1997 and was the Group’s office manager 

and assistant of the Group’s general manager before 

becoming the Director of Administration in January 

2005. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. WANG worked 

as an office manager in Dajiangnan Shopping Mall in 

Shenzhen during the period between 1993 and 1997, 

during when Ms. WANG obtained experience in handling 

various administration and public relationship matters.

mr. he ge, aged 41, is the Group’s Deputy Director of 

Procurement specialised in the sourcing, procurement, 

management of concessionaire counters and product 

planning of supermarket items for all the department 

stores. Mr. HE graduated from a four-year part-time 

course on business administration from the Ningxia 

University in 2006. Mr. HE joined Shirble Department 

Store (Shenzhen) in July 1995 as a procurement 

officer and was subsequently promoted to be a deputy 

manager of the procurement department before 

becoming the Deputy Director of Procurement since 

January 2005.

mr. li aiming, aged 41, is the Group’s Deputy 

Director of Procurement specialising in the sourcing, 

procurement, management of concessionaire counters 

and product planning of garment and apparel items, 

leather products and children’s products for the 

department stores. Before joining the Group, Mr. LI 

worked as a procurement manager in Dajiangnan 

Shopping Mall in Shenzhen during the period between 

1992 and 1995, during when Mr. LI gained extensive 

experience in sourcing and procurement activities. Mr. 

LI joined Shirble Department Store (Shenzhen) in July 

1995 as a procurement officer and was subsequently 

promoted to be a manager of procurement. Mr. LI has 

been the Deputy Director of Procurement since October 

2008.

mr. tang mingqiang, aged 40, is the Group’s Deputy 

Director of Procurement specialising in the sourcing, 

procurement, management of concessionaire counters 

and product planning of electrical appliances for the 

Group’s department stores. Mr. TANG graduated from 

a two-year full-time course on marketing and sales 

from the Guangxi Commerce School in 1991. Mr. 

TANG joined Shirble Department Store (Shenzhen) in 

September 1995 as a procurement officer and was 

subsequently promoted to be a deputy manager of 

the procurement department before becoming the 

Deputy Director of Procurement since October 2008. 

Before joining the Group, Mr. TANG worked as an 

administration staff for a food manufacturing company 

for a period of about five years.
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ms. liu lixin, aged 53, is the Group’s Deputy 

Director of Business Operation. Ms. LIU is principally 

responsible for the management of the Group’s 

Shenzhen Distribution Centre, the maintenance and 

repair department and the management of staff 

recruitment and training programs. Ms. LIU graduated 

from a two-year full-time course in chemistry from 

the Anhui Suzhou Normal School in 1980, and a 

further two-year course in chemistry from the Xinjiang 

Education Institute in 1991. From 1986 to 1995, Ms. 

LIU was a secondary school teacher. Ms. LIU joined 

Shirble Department Store (Shenzhen) in June 1995 

and was an administration officer and assistant of 

the general manager of Shirble Department Store 

(Shenzhen) before becoming the Deputy Director of 

Business Operation since January 2005.

mr. Xue Junming, aged 48, is the Group’s Deputy 

Director of Business Operation. Mr. XUE is principally 

responsible for overseeing the general operation and 

maintenance of the department stores and coordinating 

the opening of new department stores at different 

locations. Mr. XUE worked as a sales manager of the 

electrical appliance department of a department store 

in Anhui Province during the period between 1983 and 

1985 and between 1988 and 1995. Mr. XUE graduated 

from a three-year full-time course on laws organised 

by the anhui radio & TV University in 1988. Mr. XUE 

joined the Group in July 1995 and was a store manager 

and an assistant of the general manager before 

becoming the Deputy Director of Business Operation 

since January 2005.
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The Board is pleased to present the report on the affairs of the Company, together with the financial statements and 

auditor’s report, for the year ended 31 December 2010.

prinCipal aCtivitieS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 5 November 2008 as an exempted 

company with limited liability under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) 

of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since the 

Listing Date.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries are the operation of department stores in the PRC.

reSultS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of 

Comprehensive Income on page 38 of this report.

propoSeD final DiviDenDS

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2010 of RMB0.0041 

in cash per share of the Company. On the assumption that shareholders’ approval is obtained at the forthcoming 

annual general meeting of the Company for the payment of the above proposed final dividend, the Company shall 

be paying dividends of approximately 30% of the year’s profit attributable to equity shareholders of the parent for 

the period commencing from the Listing Date to 31 December 2010. Upon the approval being obtained in the 

forthcoming annual general meeting, the above final dividend will be paid to shareholders whose name appear on 

the register of members of the Company at close of business on 20 May 2011. The proposed final dividend will be 

paid in Hong Kong dollars, and will be calculated by reference to the middle rate published by the People’s Bank of 

China for the conversion of RMB to Hong Kong dollars as at 20 May 2011.

propertY, plant anD eQuipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set out in note 12 to the financial 

statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note 23(b) to the financial 

statements.

reServeS

As at 31 December 2010, distributable reserves of the Company included the Company’s retained earnings 

amounted to RMB10,351,000 and the Company’s share premium amounted to RMB894,338,000. By passing an 

ordinary resolution of the Company, dividends may also be declared and paid out of share premium account or 

any other fund or account which can be authorized for this purpose in accordance with the Companies Law of the 

Cayman Islands. Details of the movements in reserves of the Company and the Group during the year are set out in 

note 23(a) to the financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.
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Charitable DonationS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to RMB877,000.

pre-emptive rightS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of association and the laws of the 

Cayman Islands do not impose any limitations on such rights.

DireCtorS

The Directors of the Company are as follow:

Director Date of appointment

Executive Directors:

Mr. YANG Xiangbo (Chairman) (5 November 2008)

Madam YANG Xiaomei (16 March 2010)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Ms. ZHaO Jinlin (18 June 2010)

Mr. CHEN Fengliang (18 June 2010)

Mr. JIANG Hongkai (18 June 2010)

No Director has resigned during the year ended 31 December 2010.

Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles, the Directors shall have the power from time to time and at any time to 

appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing 

Board. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of 

Shareholders after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed by the 

Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of the 

Company and shall then be eligible for re-election. Any Director appointed pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles 

shall not be taken into account in determining which particular Directors or the number of Directors who are to retire 

by rotation.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the articles of association of the Company, at each annual general meeting one-third of the 

Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than 

one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual 

general meeting at least once every three years and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association and the Code on Corporate Governance Practices 

contained in appendix 14 to the rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “listing 

rules”), Mr. YANG Xiangbo will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and Madam YANG 

Xiaomei and Ms. ZHaO Jinlin will retire by rotation. All retiring Directors, being eligible, would offer themselves for re-

election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DireCtorS’ ServiCe ContraCtS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract, together with supplement, with the Company 

for an initial term of three years commencing on 17 November 2010. The service contract shall continue thereafter 

and may only be terminated in accordance with the provisions therein contained by either party giving to the 

other not less than three months’ prior notice in writing. Mr. YANG Xiangbo will receive an annual Director’s 

fee of HK$1,440,000 under the service contract. Madam YANG Xiaomei will receive an annual Director’s fee of 

HK$780,000.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered or has proposed to enter into any service agreements 

with the Company or any of its subsidiaries (other than contracts expiring or determinable by the employer within 

one year without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation).

retirement SChemeS

Employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC and Hong Kong are required to participate in defined 

contribution retirement schemes. Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in note 5(b) to the financial 

statements.

DireCtorS’ anD Chief eXeCutiveS’ intereStS anD Short poSitionS in ShareS 
anD unDerlYing ShareS anD DebentureS of the CompanY anD itS aSSoCiateD 
CorporationS

As at 31 December 2010, the interests of the Directors in the shares of the Company and its associated 

corporations as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the Securities and Futures 

Ordinance (the “Sfo”); or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model 

Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “model Code”) set forth in Appendix 10 to 

the Listing rules were as follows:

(a) long positions in Shares of the Company

name of director Capacity
number of 

shares
percentage of 

shareholding

Mr. YANG Xiangbo1 Interest in a controlled corporation 1,662,487,500 66.5%
Madam YANG Xiaomei2 Interest in a controlled corporation 150,000,000 6.0%

Notes:

(1) Mr. YANG Xiangbo is the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital of Xiang Rong Investment, which in turn owns 

the entire issued share capital of Shirble BVI and is deemed to be interested in the 1,662,487,500 Shares held by 

Shirble BVI.

(2) Madam YANG Xiaomei is the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital of Homey Enterprises which holds 

150,000,000 Shares and is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Homey Enterprises.
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(b) long positions in the shares of associated corporations

name of director
name of associated 
corporations Capacity

number of 
shares

percentage of 
shareholding

Mr. YANG Xiangbo Shirble BVI Interest in a controlled 
 corporation

50,000 100%

Mr. YANG Xiangbo Xiang Rong Investment Beneficial owner 100 100%
Madam YANG Xiaomei Homey Enterprises Beneficial owner 100 100%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, none of the Directors or chief executives of the Company 

had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its 

associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by 

the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange 

pursuant to the Model Code; nor had there been any grant or exercise of rights of such interests during the period 

from the Listing Date to 31 December 2010.

SubStantial ShareholDerS’ intereStS anD Short poSitionS in ShareS anD 
unDerlYing ShareS of the CompanY

As at 31 December 2010, so far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the Company, the following 

persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the Company), had interests or short positions in the shares or 

underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 

2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, who is, directly or indirectly to be interested in 10% or more of the nominal value 

of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other member of 

the Group:

long position in the shares of the Company

name Capacity

number of 

shares

percentage of 

shareholding

Shirble BVI Beneficial owner 1,662,487,500 66.5%

Xiang Rong Investment Interest in a controlled corporation 1,662,487,500 66.5%

Homey Enterprises Beneficial owner 150,000,000 6.0%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, the Directors are not aware of any person  (other than a Director 

or chief executive of the Company) who had any interests or short positions in shares or, underlying Shares which 

would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of 

Part XV of the SFO, or, be directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share 

capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the Group.
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Share option SCheme

The Company adopted a Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) pursuant to the resolutions of the shareholders of 

the Company passed on 30 October 2010:

A summary of the Scheme is as follows:

1. The purpose of the Scheme is to recognise and acknowledge the contributions that the eligible participants 

have made or may make to the business development of the Group. Apart from the determination of the 

subscription price, the Directors will have an absolute discretion to impose performance targets on the option 

holders before any option that can be exercised with reference to the objectives of the Share Option Scheme. a 

consideration of HK$1.0 will be payable upon acceptance of the offer.

2. The eligible participants of the Scheme are:

(i) any executive, non-executive or independent non-executive Director;

(ii) any employee of the Group; and

(iii) any customer, supplier, agent, business or joint venture partner, consultant, distributor, promoter, service 

provider, adviser or contractor to any member of the Group.

3. The maximum number of Shares may be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share 

capital of the Company (i.e. 250,000,000 Shares) as at the Listing Date.

4. Unless approved by Shareholders, no option may be granted to any eligible participants which if exercised 

in full would result in the total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the share options 

already granted or to be granted to such eligible participant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding 

share option) in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such new grant exceeding 1% of the total 

number of Shares in issue as at the date of such new grant.

5. An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during the period to be 

notified by the Board to the grantee save that such period shall not be more than 10 years from the business 

day on which the option is deemed to have been granted in accordance with the terms of the Scheme. There is 

no minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.
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6. The subscription price in respect of each Share under the Scheme shall, subject to any adjustments made as 

described below, be a price determined by the Board and notified to the eligible participant and shall be no less 

than the highest of: (i) the nominal value of a Share; (ii) the closing price of each Share as stated in the Stock 

Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer to the eligible participant, which must be a day on which 

licensed banks are open for business in Hong Kong and the Stock Exchange is open for business of dealing in 

securities (a “trading Day”); and (iii) the average closing price of each Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s 

daily quotations sheets for the five (5) consecutive trading days immediately preceding the date of offer to the 

eligible participant.

7. The Scheme will remain in force until 29 October 2020.

Since the date of adoption of the Scheme and up to the date of this report, no options have been granted under the 

Scheme.

remuneration poliCY

The employees’ and Directors’ remuneration is determined with reference to salaries paid by comparable companies, 

experience, responsibilities and performance of the Group. In addition to the fees, salaries, housing allowances, 

other allowances, benefits in kind or bonuses, the Company has conditionally adopted the Share Option Scheme 

pursuant to which the participants, including the Directors, may be granted options to subscribe for the Shares.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in 

notes 7 and 8 to the financial statements.

DireCtorS’ intereSt in Competing buSineSS

as at 31 December 2010, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing rules) had 

any interest in a business, which competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Controlling Shareholders (as defined in the Prospectus) and the executive 

Directors (collectively, the “Covenantors”) have entered into a deed of non-competition in favor of the Company 

with effect from the Listing Date. The Convenantors have provided the Group with written confirmations that they 

and their associates (other than members of the Group) have fully complied with the deed of non-competition from 

the Listing Date up to and including 31 December 2010.

The independent non-executive Directors have conducted an annual review on the Covenantors’ compliance with 

the deed of non-competition, the options, the pre-emptive rights or first rights of refusals provided by the Controlling 

Shareholders (as defined in the Prospectus) on their existing or future competing businesses.
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management ContraCtS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of 

the Company were entered into or existed during the year.

DireCtorS’ right to aCQuire ShareS or DebentureS

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in 

Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and Its associated Corporations” and “Share Option 

Scheme” above, at no time during the year was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement 

to enable the Directors or chief executive or any of their spouse or children under the age of 18 to acquire benefits 

by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

arrangementS to purChaSe ShareS

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any 

arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company or 

any other body corporate.

ConneCteD tranSaCtionS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the ordinary course of business are set out in note 

27(a) to the financial statements. The transactions stated below constitute continuing connected transactions as 

defined in Chapter 14a of the Listing rules.

lease agreement with luhe Country Shirble inn (“Shirble inn”)

Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 1 June 2004 and a supplemental agreement dated 1 March 2010 entered 

into between Shirble Chain Store and Shirble Inn, Shirble Chain Store has agreed to lease the property with a total 

area of approximately 2,227 sq. m. located at the 1st Floor and 2nd Floor of Shirble Inn from 3 June 2004 until 31 

December 2012 as the Group’s Luhe store. The annual rental is fixed at rMB198,000.

Shirble Inn is ultimately controlled by Mr. YANG Xiangbo, an executive Director and a controlling Shareholder. Hence, 

Shirble Inn is an associate of a connected person of the Company. Pursuant to the Listing rules, Shirble Inn is a 

connected person of the Company.

lease agreements with Shenzhen guozhan investment Development Co., ltd (“Shenzhen 
guozhan”)

Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 9 October 2009 and a supplemental agreement, Shirble Department Store 

(Shenzhen) leased part of the Shenzhen Distribution Centre of 7,500.43 sq. m. from Shenzhen Guozhan for the 

period from 15 September 2009 to 31 December 2012 for the Group’s continuous use as distribution centre. The 

monthly rental is RMB33 per sq. m., i.e. an annual rental of approximately RMB2,970,000.
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In addition, pursuant to another lease agreement and a supplemental agreement both dated 29 June 2009, Shirble 

Department Store (Shenzhen) leased from Shenzhen Guozhan a property of approximately 13,298.93 sq. m. located 

at the building complex situated at Shangbu North Road, Bagualing Zone 7-1, Futian District, Shenzhen, the PRC. 

The property is part of the Group’s Shenzhen Distribution Centre. The lease periods are set forth below:

area period monthly rental

(sq. m.) (RMB)

3,556.07 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2012 117,350.31

9,742.86 1 April 2009 to 31 December 2012 321,514.38

total 438,864.69

Shenzhen Guozhan is owned as to 20% by Mr. ZHU Huayue, Mr. YaNG Xiangbo’s brother-in-law and as to 80% by 

Ms. ZHU Bihui, Mr. YaNG Xiangbo’s niece, who is also a 50% equity interest holder of ruizhuo Investment. Hence, 

Shenzhen Guozhan is a connected person of the Company under the Listing rules.

lease agreements with ruizhuo investment

1. Lease of part of the Shenzhen Distribution Centre

Pursuant to a lease agreement and a supplemental agreement both dated 29 June 2009, Shirble Department 

Store (Shenzhen) leased from Ruizhuo Investment a property of 3,345.82 sq. m. located at the building complex 

situated at Shangbu North Road, Bagualing Zone 7-1, Futian District, Shenzhen, the PRC. The property is part 

of the Group’s Shenzhen Distribution Centre. The lease periods are set forth below:

area period monthly rental

(sq. m.) (RMB)

1,695.63 1 January 2004 to 29 February 2008 and

 1 December 2008 to 31 December 2012 55,955.79

277.43 1 January 2004 to 31 December 2012 9,155.19

1,372.76 1 July 2002 to 31 December 2012 56,283.16

total 121,394.14

Thus, the aggregate annual rental is approximately RMB1,457,000.

2. Lease of a commercial property as a tobacco sales counter

Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 12 January 2010 and a supplemental agreement, Shirble Chain Store 

leased from ruizhuo Investment a property of 39.02 sq. m. located at Bao’an road, Luohu District, Shenzhen, 

China for the period from 10 January 2010 to 9 January 2013 at a monthly rental of approximately RMB1,678, 

i.e. an annual rental of approximately RMB20,134. The property is used as a tobacco sales counter of the 

Group’s Hongbao store.
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ruizhuo Investment is owned in equal shares by Mr. ZHU Bijiang, who is a member of the Group’s senior 

management team and a nephew of Mr. YaNG Xiangbo, and Ms. ZHU Bihui, who is a niece of Mr. YaNG Xiangbo. 

Hence, ruizhuo Investment is a connected person of the Company under the Listing rules.

All of the above transactions involve lease of properties from entities controlled by Mr. YANG or his associates. The 

continuing connected transactions represented by the lease agreements with Shirble Inn, Shenzhen Guozhan and 

Ruizhuo Investment should be aggregated and treated as if they were one transaction pursuant to Rule 14A.25 of 

the Listing rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the aggregate annual rental paid under the lease agreements with Shirble 

Inn, Shenzhen Guozhan and Ruizhuo Investment amounted to RMB9,912,000 which was within the applicable 

annual cap of RMB9,914,000.

The above constitute continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14a of the Listing rules and a waiver from 

strict compliance with the announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14a of the Listing 

Rules has been granted by the Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed that the above continuing connected 

transactions were:

(i) carried out in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(ii) carried out on normal commercial terms; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the 

interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, the auditor of the Company have confirmed that the above transactions have been 

approved by the Board and did not exceed the applicable annual cap stated in the Prospectus.

purChaSe, Sale or reDemption of the CompanY SeCuritieS

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities 

during the year.

maJor CuStomerS anD SupplierS

As the Group is principally engaged in retail sales, none of its customers and suppliers accounted for more than 5% 

of its turnover in the year ended 31 December 2010. None of the Directors or shareholders who owned 5% or more 

of the issued shares capital of the Company as at 31 December 2010 or any of their respective associates held any 

interest in any of the five largest customers and suppliers of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2010.
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banK loanS anD other borroWingS

As at 31 December 2010, the Group did not have any bank loans and other borrowings (2009: RMB132.0 million). 

Particulars of the bank loans and other borrowings are set out in note 21 to the financial statements.

SuffiCienCY of publiC float

Based on the information that is publicly available and within the knowledge of the Directors at the latest practicable 

date prior to the publication of this annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the 

Listing rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2010 since the Listing Date and at any time up to the latest 

practicable date prior to the publication of this report.

DireCtorS’ intereStS in ContraCtS

Save as disclosed under the “Connected Transactions” section above, no Director had a material interest, whether 

directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its 

subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Corporate governanCe report

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the “Corporate Governance report” under 

this annual report.

SubSeQuent eventS

After the reporting date, the directors proposed a final dividend of RMB10,250,000 on 24 March 2011. Further 

details are disclosed in note 23(d) to the financial statements.

auDitor

The financial statements were audited by KPMG who will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the 

Company. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint KPMG as auditor 

of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Yang Xiangbo

Chairman

24 March 2011
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Corporate governanCe praCtiCeS

The Company recognizes the importance of good corporate governance to the Group’s success and therefore is 

committed to achieving and maintaining high standards of corporate governance. The Company has applied the 

principles and code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in 

appendix 14 to the Listing rules.

In the opinion of the Directors, except for the deviations as disclosed in this report, the Company has complied with 

the code provisions set out in the Code for the period from the Listing date to 31 December 2010 (the “relevant 

period”).

boarD of DireCtorS

The Board comprises two executive Directors, namely Mr. Yang Xiangbo (Chairman) and Madam Yang Xiaomei, and 

three independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Zhao Jinlin, Mr. Chen Fengliang and Mr. Jiang Hongkai. 

Pursuant to Article 84 of the articles of association of the Company, at each annual general meeting one-third of the 

Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than 

one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual 

general meeting at least once every three years and shall then be eligible for re-election. The biographical details of 

the Directors are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management Profile” section on pages 17 to 22 of this annual 

report.

The roles of Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are separately performed by Mr. Yang Xiangbo and Madam 

Yang Xiaomei, respectively, in order to ensure the balance of power and authority. The Chairman is responsible for 

leading the Board as well as formulating the Group’s overall business development strategies and providing overall 

management directions of the Group whilst the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-day management 

of the Group’s business.

The Board is responsible for overall management and control of the Company including formulation and approval 

of overall strategies, material transactions, business plans and other significant financial and operational matters 

to enhance the value to shareholders. The Board has delegated the responsibilities for day-to-day operations and 

management of the Group’s business to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management of the Company.

In accordance with rule 3.13 of the Listing rules, the Company has received annual confirmation of independence 

from the three independent non-executive Directors. The Company considers all the independent non-executive 

Directors are independent. Each of the independent non-executive Directors is appointed for a term of one year from 

18 June 2010.

freQuenCY of meetingS anD attenDanCe

During the Relevant Period, only one Board meeting was held as the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 

the Listing Date. all Directors attended the meeting.
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moDel CoDe for SeCuritieS tranSaCtionS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct regarding the Directors’ securities transactions. 

Having made specific enquiries of all the Directors, the Company confirmed that they have complied with the Model 

Code during the Relevant Period.

auDitor’S remuneration

The Independent Auditor’s Report of the Company’s auditor, KPMG, in respect of the audit of the Group’s financial 

statements for the year is set out on pages 36 and 37 of this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the auditor’s remuneration was approximately RMB1,453,000 in respect 

of provision of audit services to the Group.

DireCtorS’ reSponSibilitieS

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing the financial statements of the Company for the 

year ended 31 December 2010.

internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure that sound and effective internal controls are maintained to 

safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets and review the effectiveness of the internal 

control system annually. Procedures have been designed to facilitate effective and efficient operations, ensure 

reliability of financial reporting, identify and manage potential risks, safeguard assets of the Group and compliance 

with applicable laws and regulations.

To ensure the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group, external consultants were hired to assist the 

Board to perform high-level review of internal control systems for certain business operations and processes. Such 

review covered financial, compliance, operational controls and risk management mechanisms. The Board believes 

that the existing internal control system is adequate and effective.

auDit Committee

Pursuant to the requirements of the Code, the Company has set up an audit committee. The audit committee 

comprises three Independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. ZHaO Jinlin, Mr. CHEN Fengliang and Mr. JIANG 

Hongkai. Ms ZHaO Jinlin is the Chairman of the audit committee and possesses relevant accounting expertise. 

None of the members of the audit committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditor.

The primary responsibilities of the audit committee are to review and supervise the Group’s financial reporting 

process and internal control system, monitor the relationship with the Company’s external auditor and the integrity of 

the financial statements.

as the Company has only been listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange since the Listing Date, no audit 

committee meeting was held during the Relevant Period.
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remuneration Committee

Pursuant to the requirements of the Code, the Company has set up a remuneration committee with majority 

members being independent non-executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, 

namely Mr. CHEN Fengliang (Chairperson) and Mr. JIANG Hongkai, both being independent non-executive Directors; 

and one executive Director, namely Mr. YANG Xiangbo.

The primary responsibilities of the remuneration committee are to provide recommendation to the Board on the 

remuneration package of Directors and senior management and establish formal and transparent procedures for 

developing such remuneration policy and structure.

as the Company has only been listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange since the Listing Date, no 

remuneration committee meeting was held during the Relevant Period.

nomination Committee

The Company has set up a nomination committee with majority members being independent non-executive 

Directors. The nomination committee comprises three members, namely Mr. JIANG Hongkai (Chairperson) and Ms. 

ZHaO Jinlin, both being independent non-executive Directors; and one executive Director, namely Madam YANG 

Xiaomei.

The primary responsibilities of the nomination committee are to review the composition of the Board regularly, assess 

the independence of independent non-executive Directors and make recommendation to the Board on relevant 

matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

as the Company has only been listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange since the Listing Date, no 

nomination committee meeting was held during the Relevant Period.

CommuniCation With ShareholDerS anD inveStorS

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders is essential for good investor relations and 

investor understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies. Therefore, the Company always seeks 

to provide relevant information through various channels including the press and analysts conferences, roadshows 

and forums organized by leading investment banks in order to enhance the transparency and communication with 

the investing public.

The Company also maintains a website at www.shirble.net/shirblecorp, where up-to-date information and updates 

on the Company’s financial information, business development and other information are available for public access.

The general meetings of the Company provide a platform for communication between the Board and the 

shareholders. The Board will normally attend the annual general meetings and other shareholders’ meetings of the 

Company to answer questions raised at the meetings.
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To the shareholders of 

Shirble Department Store holdings (China) limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shirble Department Store Holdings (China) Limited (the 

“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “group”) set out on pages 38 to 88, which comprise the consolidated and 

company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2010, the consolidated statement of comprehensive 

income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then 

ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

 DireCtorS’ reSponSibilitY for the ConSoliDateD finanCial StatementS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give 

a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International 

accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for 

such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial 

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

auDitor’S reSponSibilitY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This report 

is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept 

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute 

of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from 

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 

of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion.
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opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 

and of the Group as at 31 December 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with 

the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Kpmg

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

24 March 2011
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Year ended 31 December

2010 2009

Note rmb’000 RMB’000

turnover 3 1,279,619 1,148,030

Other operating revenue 4 181,400 85,448

Other net income 4 1,387 187

Purchase of and changes in inventories 5(c) (872,969) (812,712)

Personnel costs 5(b) (98,482) (87,619)

Depreciation 5(c) (31,204) (34,798)

Operating lease rental expense 5(c) (108,476) (90,153)

Other expenses (90,309) (70,042)

profit from operations 260,966 138,341

Finance income 8,204 37,729

Finance costs (1,704) (1,238)

Net finance income 5(a) 6,500 36,491

profit before tax 5 267,466 174,832

Income tax expense 6(a) (67,384) (34,528)

profit for the year 200,082 140,304

other comprehensive income

Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of 

 overseas subsidiaries 10 93 –

total comprehensive income for the year 200,175 140,304

profit attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the Company 200,082 140,304

profit for the year 200,082 140,304

total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the Company 200,175 140,304

total comprehensive income for the year 200,175 140,304

earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share (RMB) 11 0.10 0.07

The notes on pages 44 to 88 form part of these financial statements.
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at 31 December

2010 2009

Note rmb’000 RMB’000

non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 12 232,978 193,375

Deferred tax assets 22 36,243 30,850

269,221 224,225

Current assets

Inventories 14 215,538 177,411

Trade and other receivables 15 151,587 413,110

Held-for-trading investments 16 – 151

Held-to-maturity investments 17 85,093 –

Pledged deposits 18 – 136,532

Cash and cash equivalents 19 1,735,974 317,914

2,188,192 1,045,118

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 20 893,569 842,824

Interest-bearing borrowings 21 – 132,032

Income tax payables 6(c) 30,757 32,266

924,326 1,007,122

net current assets 1,263,866 37,996

total assets less current liabilities 1,533,087 262,221

non-current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities 22 2,043 –

2,043 –

net aSSetS 1,531,044 262,221

The notes on pages 44 to 88 form part of these financial statements.
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at 31 December

2010 2009

Note rmb’000 RMB’000

Capital anD reServeS

Share capital 23(b) 214,318 107,380

reserves 23(c) 1,316,726 154,841

total eQuitY 1,531,044 262,221

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of Shirble Department Store Holdings (China) Limited 

on 24 March 2011.

Yang Xiangbo Yang Xiaomei

Director Director

The notes on pages 44 to 88 form part of these financial statements.
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at 31 December

2010 2009

Note rmb’000 RMB’000

non-current assets

Investments in subsidiaries 13 107,380 –

Current assets

Trade and other receivables 15 67,951 –

Held-to-maturity investments 17 85,093 –

Cash and cash equivalents 19 996,431 4

1,149,475 4

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 20 30,476 4

30,476 4

net current assets 1,118,999 –

net assets 1,226,379 –

Capital and reserves

Share capital 23(b) 214,318 –

Reserves 23(c) 1,012,061 –

total equity 1,226,379 –

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of Shirble Department Store Holdings (China) Limited 

on 24 March 2011.

Yang Xiangbo Yang Xiaomei

Director Director

The notes on pages 44 to 88 form part of these financial statements.
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attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

Share

 capital

Share

 premium

merger

 reserve

Statutory

 reserves

translation

 reserve

retained 

earnings total equity

Note rmb’000 rmb’000 rmb’000 rmb’000 rmb’000 rmb’000 rmb’000

(note 23(b)) (note 23(c)(i)) (note 23(c)(ii)) (note 23(c)(iii)) (note 23(c)(v))

At 1 January 2009 117,380 – – 41,083 – 254,081 412,544

Total comprehensive income 

 for the year – – – – – 140,304 140,304

Dividends to equity shareholders 23(d) – – – – – (280,627) (280,627)

Appropriation to reserves – – – 14,432 – (14,432) –

Elimination of registered capital in 

 connection with 

 the Reorganisation 23(b)(ii) (10,000) – – – – – (10,000)

At 31 December 2009 

 and 1 January 2010 107,380 – – 55,515 – 99,326 262,221

 Profit for the year – – – – – 200,082 200,082

 Other comprehensive income – – – – 93 – 93

Total comprehensive income 

 for the year – – – – 93 200,082 200,175

Arising from the Reorganisation (107,372) – 107,372 – – – –

Issuance of shares by initial public 

 offering, net of issuance costs 23(b)(iv) 53,580 1,055,068 – – – – 1,108,648

Capitalisation issue 23(b)(v) 160,730 (160,730) – – – – –

Dividends to equity shareholders 23(d) – – – – – (40,000) (40,000)

Appropriation to reserves – – – 20,660 – (20,660) –

At 31 December 2010 214,318 894,338 107,372 76,175 93 238,748 1,531,044

The notes on pages 44 to 88 form part of these financial statements.
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Year ended 31 December

2010 2009

Note rmb’000 RMB’000

operating activities

Profit for the year 200,082 140,304

Adjustments for:

Depreciation 5(c) 31,204 34,798

Net finance income 5(a) (6,500) (36,491)

(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (14) 162

Foreign exchange loss 5,155 –

Income tax expense 6(a) 67,384 34,528

297,311 173,301

Change in inventories (38,127) (3,761)

Change in trade and other receivables 352,258 67,632

Change in trade and other payables 44,792 65,002

Interest paid (1,704) (1,238)

Income tax paid 6(c) (72,243) (12,560)

net cash generated from operating activities 582,287 288,376

investing activities

Payment for the purchase of property, plant and equipment (146,108) (30,466)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 305 125

Payment for the purchase of held-for-trading investments – (402,645)

Proceeds from disposal of held-for-trading investments 306 465,411

Payment for the purchase of held-to-maturity investments (85,330) –

Interest received 7,571 5,002

net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (223,256) 37,427

financing activities

Proceeds from initial public offering, net of issuance expenses 1,099,294 –

Proceeds from interest-bearing borrowings – 132,032

Repayment of interest-bearing borrowings (132,032) (44,800)

Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits 136,532 (136,532)

Dividend paid (40,000) (280,627)

net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities 1,063,794 (329,927)

net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,422,825 (4,124)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 317,914 322,038

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (4,765) –

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 19 1,735,974 317,914

The notes on pages 44 to 88 form part of these financial statements.
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1 CompanY baCKgrounD anD baSiS of preparation

1.1 general information and basis of presentation

Shirble Department Store Holdings (China) Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman 

Islands as an exempted company with limited liability on 5 November 2008 under the Companies Law, 

Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Pursuant to a reorganisation (the “reorganisation”) of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively 

referred to as the “group”) to rationalise the Group’s structure in preparation for the listing of the 

Company’s shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock 

exchange”), the Company became the holding company of the subsidiaries now comprising the Group. 

Details of the Reorganisation are set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 5 November 2010 (the 

“prospectus”). The Company’s shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on 17 November 2010.

Since all entities which took part in the Reorganisation were under common control of a group of ultimate 

shareholders, the Group is regarded as a continuing entity resulting from a reorganisation of entities under 

common control. These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the current 

group structure had been in existence at the beginning of the earliest period presented. Accordingly, the 

consolidated results of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2010 include the results of 

the Company and its subsidiaries with effect from 1 January 2009 or, if later, since their respective dates of 

incorporation as if the current group structure had been in existence throughout the two years presented. 

The consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2009 has been prepared as if the 

current group structure had been in existence as at that date. All material intra-group transactions and 

balances have been eliminated on consolidation.

1.2 basis of preparation

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable 

individual International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards (IASs) 

and related Interpretations, issued by the International accounting Standards Board (“iaSb”), and 

the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial 

statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the rules Governing the Listing 

of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. a summary of the significant accounting 

policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are first effective or available for early 

adoption for the current accounting period of the Group and the Company. For the purpose of 

these consolidated financial statements, the Group has adopted at the beginning of the earliest year 

presented, all the IFRSs that have been issued and effective for the entire year, except for any new 

standards or interpretations that are not yet effective for the accounting year ended 31 December 

2010. The revised and new accounting standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective for 

the accounting year ended 31 December 2010 are set out in note 30.
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1 CompanY baCKgrounD anD baSiS of preparation (continued)

1.2 basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements are presented in renminbi (“rmb”), rounded to the nearest 

thousand, unless otherwise stated. They are prepared on the historical cost basis except for held for 

trading investments that are stated at fair values (see note 2(c)(i)).

(c) Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management 

to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies 

and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated 

assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be 

reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments 

about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual 

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 

estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that 

period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future 

periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of IFRSs that have significant effect on the 

consolidated financial statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed as 

follows:

(i) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, 

less applicable variable selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current market 

condition and the historical experience of distributing and selling products of similar nature. They 

could change significantly as a result of competitor’s actions in response to severe economic 

cycles or other changes in market conditions. Management will reassess the estimations at each 

reporting date.

(ii) Impairment losses on trade and other receivables

Impairment losses on trade and other receivables are assessed and provided based on 

management’s regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation of collectability. A considerable 

level of judgment is exercised by the management when assessing the credit worthiness and 

past collection history of each individual customer. Any increase or decrease in the impairment 

losses for bad and doubtful debts would affect the the profit or loss in future years.
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1 CompanY baCKgrounD anD baSiS of preparation (continued)

1.2 basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Use of estimates and judgments (continued)

(iii) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful 

lives, after taking into account the estimated residual value. The management periodically reviews 

changes in customer preferences and industry conditions, assets retirement activity and residual 

values to determine adjustments to estimated remaining useful lives and depreciation rates. 

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic reviews could result in a 

change in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation expenses in future periods.

(iv) Recognition of income taxes and deferred tax assets

Determining income tax provision involves judgment on the future tax treatment of certain 

transactions. The management carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax 

provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered 

periodically to take into account all changes in tax legislations. Deferred tax assets are 

recognised in respect of temporary deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets can only 

be recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against 

which the unused tax credits can be utilised, management’s judgment is required to assess 

the probability of future taxable profits. Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed and 

additional deferred tax assets, where applicable, are recognised if it becomes probable that 

future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

2 SummarY of SignifiCant aCCounting poliCieS

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power to govern 

the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing 

control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements from the date 

that control commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and any 

unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the 

consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated 

in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less 

impairment losses (see note 2(f)).
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2 SummarY of SignifiCant aCCounting poliCieS (continued)

(b) foreign currency

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the currency 

that best reflects the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to the 

entity (the “functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in rMB (the “presentation 

currency”).

(ii) Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign exchange rates at the 

transaction dates.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign 

exchange rates ruling at the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or 

loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency 

are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets 

and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the 

foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

(iii) Financial statements of foreign operations

The results of foreign operations are translated into RMB at the exchange rates approximating the 

foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Assets and liabilities are translated into 

RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates at the reporting date. The resulting exchange differences 

are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the translation 

reserve.

(c) financial instruments

(i) Non-derivative financial assets

The Group initially recognises loans and receivables and deposits on the date that they are 

originated. All other financial assets (including assets designated at fair value through profit or loss) 

are recognised initially on the trade date at which the Group becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 

asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in 

a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are 

transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Group is 

recognised as a separate asset or liability.
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2 SummarY of SignifiCant aCCounting poliCieS (continued)

(c) financial instruments (continued)

(i) Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial 

position when, and only when, the Group has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to 

settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group has the following non-derivative financial assets: financial assets at fair value through profit 

or loss, held-to-maturity financial assets, loans and receivables, and cash and cash equivalents.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified at fair value through profit or loss if it is classified as held for trading or is 

designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial assets are designated at fair value through profit 

or loss if the Group manages such investments and makes purchase and sale decisions based on 

their fair value in accordance with the Group’s documented risk management or investment strategy. 

Upon initial recognition attributable transaction costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, and changes therein are 

recognized in profit or loss.

Held-to-maturity financial assets

If the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold debt securities to maturity, then such financial 

assets are classified as held-to-maturity. Held-to-maturity financial assets are recognized initially at 

fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition held-to-

maturity financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any 

impairment losses. Any sale or reclassification of a more than insignificant amount of held-to-maturity 

investments not close to their maturity would result in the reclassification of all held-to-maturity 

investments as available-for-sale, and prevent the Group from classifying investment securities as 

held-to-maturity for the current and the following two financial years.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted 

in an active market. Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable 

transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition loans and receivables are measured at amortised 

cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Loans and receivables comprise trade and other receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits with original maturities of three 

months or less.
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2 SummarY of SignifiCant aCCounting poliCieS (continued)

(c) financial instruments (continued)

(ii) Non-derivative financial liabilities

The Group initially recognises financial liabilities on the trade date at which the Group becomes a 

party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled 

or expire.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial 

position when, and only when, the Group has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to 

settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group has the following non-derivative financial liabilities: loans and borrowings and trade and 

other payables.

Such financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction 

costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using 

the effective interest method.

(iii) Share capital

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary 

shares and share options are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

(d) property, plant and equipment

(i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment losses (see note 2(f)).

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-

constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable 

to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and 

removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located and capitalised borrowing costs 

(see note 2(o)). Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is 

capitalised as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted 

for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
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2 SummarY of SignifiCant aCCounting poliCieS (continued)

(d) property, plant and equipment (continued)

(ii) Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the 
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the 
component will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the 
replaced component is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and 
equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant components of 
individual assets are assessed and if a component has a useful life that is different from the remainder 
of that asset, that component is depreciated separately.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over 
the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment. Buildings held for 
own use which are situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term of 
the lease and their estimated useful lives, ranging from 14 to 59 years after the date of completion.

The estimated useful lives of other property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Machinery and equipment 5 years
Furniture and other equipment 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Leasehold improvements 5-10 years or the remaining term of any
 non-renewable lease, whichever is shorter
Others 5 years

No depreciation is provided for assets under construction until such time as the relevant assets are 
completed and available for intended use. Assets under construction are transferred to the relevant 
category of property, plant and equipment upon the completion of their respective construction.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and 
adjusted if appropriate.

(iv) Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents primarily leasehold improvements, machinery and equipment, 
which are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses (see note 2(f)). Cost includes all direct 
costs relating to the construction of the assets and acquisition.

(v) Disposal

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by 
comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and 
are recognised net within other net income in the profit or loss.
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2 SummarY of SignifiCant aCCounting poliCieS (continued)

(e) inventories

Inventories comprise merchandise purchased for resale and are measured at the lower of cost and net 

realisable value.

The cost of inventories is based on the first-in, first-out principle, and includes goods purchase cost and 

other direct costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable 

variable selling expenses. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses 

of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of 

any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories 

recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

(f) impairment of assets

(i) Non-derivative financial assets

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date 

to determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if 

objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, 

and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can 

be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default or delinquency by a debtor, 

restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would not consider otherwise, 

indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a 

security. In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair 

value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investment securities

The Group considers evidence of impairment for loans and receivables and held-to-maturity 

investment securities at both a specific asset and collective level. All individually significant receivables 

and held-to-maturity investment securities are assessed for specific impairment. All individually 

significant loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investment securities found not to be specifically 

impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet 

identified. Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investment securities that are not individually 

significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together receivables and held-to-

maturity investment securities with similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment the Group uses historical trends of the probability of default, timing 

of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgment as to whether 

current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less 

than suggested by historical trends.
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2 SummarY of SignifiCant aCCounting poliCieS (continued)

(f) impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the 

difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows 

discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and 

reflected in an allowance account against loans and receivables. Interest on the impaired asset 

continues to be recognised. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to 

decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

(ii) Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred 

tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of 

impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An 

impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-generating unit 

(CGU) exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less 

costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present 

value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 

money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that 

cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates 

cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or 

CGU.

The Group’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows and are utilised by more than 

one CGU. Corporate assets are allocated to CGUs on a reasonable and consistent basis and tested 

for impairment as part of the testing of the CGU to which the corporate asset is allocated.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs 

are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata 

basis.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications 

that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a 

change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed 

only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would 

have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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2 SummarY of SignifiCant aCCounting poliCieS (continued)

(f) impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, 

the Group is required to prepare an interim financial report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim financial 

reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the end of the interim period, the 

Group applies the same reversal criteria as it would at the end of the financial year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity 

securities and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not reversed in a subsequent period. This 

is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had the impairment been 

assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the interim period relates. Consequently, if the 

fair value of an available-for-sale equity security increases in the remainder of the annual period, or 

in any other period subsequently, the increase is recognised in other comprehensive income and not 

profit or loss.

(g) employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits

Salary, annual bonuses and cost of non-monetary benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis 

and are expensed as the related service is provided.

(ii) Defined contribution retirement plan

Obligations for contributions to local government defined contribution retirement schemes pursuant 

to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC and the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund 

Scheme Ordinance are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as incurred.

(h) provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive 

obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 

required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows 

at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 

to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be 

estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow 

of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities 

unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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2 SummarY of SignifiCant aCCounting poliCieS (continued)

(i) revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Provided it is probable 

that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be 

measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the profit or loss as follows:

(i) Direct sales

Revenue from direct sales is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, 

net of returns and trade discounts. Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards 

of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the 

associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing 

management involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Sales of goods that result in award credits for customers under the Group’s customer loyalty 

programme, are accounted for as multiple element revenue transactions and the fair value of the 

consideration received or receivable is allocated between the goods sold and the award credits 

granted. The consideration allocated to the award credits is measured by reference to the fair value 

of the cash coupons for which they could be redeemed. Such consideration is not recognised as 

revenue at the time of the initial sale transaction, but is deferred and recognised as revenue when the 

award credits are redeemed and the Group’s obligations have been fulfilled.

(ii) Commission from concessionaire sales

Commission from concessionaire sales is recognised upon the sales of the concessionaire’s goods by 

the relevant stores.

(iii) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income from subleased shop premises under operating leases is recognised in profit or loss 

in equal instalments over the period covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is 

more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease 

incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease 

payments receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the accounting period in which 

they are earned.

(iv) Advertisement and promotion income

Advertisement and promotion income are recognised according to the underlying contract terms with 

concessionaries and as the services are provided accordingly.

(v) Credit card handling income

Credit card handling income is recognised when the related service is rendered.
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2 SummarY of SignifiCant aCCounting poliCieS (continued)

(j) operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the 

term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense, 

over the term of the lease.

(k) finance income and costs

Finance income comprises gains on the disposal of held-for-trading investments, interest income and 

foreign currency gains. Interest income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings and unwinding of the discount on provisions. All 

borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss or capitalised using the effective interest method (see note 

2(o)).

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

(l) income tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in profit or loss 

except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income or equity, in 

which case it is recognised in other comprehensive income or equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year/period, using tax rates enacted 

or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous 

years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences respectively, 

being the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purpose 

and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent 

that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are 

recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from 

deductible temporary differences include those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary 

differences, provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, 

and are expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary 

difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax assets can be carried back or 

forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable temporary differences 

support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those 

differences are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, 

and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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2 SummarY of SignifiCant aCCounting poliCieS (continued)

(l) income tax expense (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation or 

settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively 

enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and is reduced to the 

extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax 

benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient 

taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay 

the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are presented separately from 

each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax 

assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set 

off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the Group intends either to settle on a 

net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously, or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax 

authority on either:

— the same taxable entity, or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred 

tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the current tax 

assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(m) Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are declared.

(n) earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS 

is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the 

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined 

by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of 

ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.



Shirble Department Store holDingS (China) limiteD • aNNUaL rEPOrT 2010 57

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010

2 SummarY of SignifiCant aCCounting poliCieS (continued)

(o) borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the year in which they are incurred, except to the extent 

that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an 

asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when 

expenditures for the asset are being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are 

necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing 

costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset 

for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

(p) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the financial statements, 

are identified from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive 

management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s 

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the 

segments have similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products and 

services, the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide the 

services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not individually 

material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

The directors consider that the Group operates in a single business segment, i.e., operation and 

management of department stores in the PRC. Accordingly, no segmental analysis is presented.

The information reported to the Chairman of the Company, who is the Group’s chief operating decision 

maker for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of performance, is prepared based on the 

overall operation of department stores in the PRC, which is the only operating and reporting segment 

of the Group. All revenues from external customers during the year are generated in the PRC and all 

significant operating assets of the Group are located in the PRC.

(q) related parties

For the purposes of the financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) The party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, to control the Group 

or exercise significant influence over the Group in making financial and operating policy decisions, or 

has joint control over the Group;

(ii) The Group and the party are subject to common control;
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2 SummarY of SignifiCant aCCounting poliCieS (continued)

(q) related parties (continued)

(iii) The party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) The party is a member of key management personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close 

family member of such an individual, or is an entity under the control, joint control or significant 

influence of such individuals;

(v) The party is a close family member of a party referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint 

control or significant influence of such individuals; or

(vi) The party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the benefit of employees of the Group or of 

any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be 

influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.

3 turnover

Turnover represents direct sales, commission from concessionaire sales and rental income. The amount of each 

significant category of revenue recognised is as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2010 2009

rmb’000 RMB’000

Direct sales 1,014,400 945,651

Commission from concessionaire sales 219,886 172,502

Rental income (i) 45,333 29,877

1,279,619 1,148,030

(i) The rental income from the leasing of shop premises is analysed as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2010 2009

rmb’000 RMB’000

Sublease rental income 39,080 24,439

Contingent rental income 6,253 5,438

45,333 29,877



Shirble Department Store holDingS (China) limiteD • aNNUaL rEPOrT 2010 59

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010

4 other operating revenue anD other net inCome

Year ended 31 December

2010 2009

rmb’000 RMB’000

other operating revenue

Advertisement and promotion income 167,284 77,360

Credit card handling income 13,488 7,675

Others 628 413

181,400 85,448

Year ended 31 December

2010 2009

rmb’000 RMB’000

other net income

Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 14 (162)

Others 1,373 349

1,387 187

5 profit before taX

Profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(a) net finance income

Year ended 31 December

2010 2009

rmb’000 RMB’000

Net gain on disposal of held-for-trading investments (155) (32,727)

Interest income (8,049) (5,002)

Finance income (8,204) (37,729)

Interest expenses 1,704 1,238

Finance costs 1,704 1,238

Net finance income (6,500) (36,491)
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5 profit before taX (continued)

(b) personnel costs

Year ended 31 December

2010 2009

rmb’000 RMB’000

Wages, salaries, and other benefits 94,322 83,679

Contribution to defined contribution plans 4,160 3,940

98,482 87,619

Personnel costs include directors’ remuneration (see note 7).

The Group participates in pension funds organised by the PRC government. According to the respective 

pension fund regulations, the Group is required to pay annual contributions for the years ended 31 

December 2009 and 2010. The Group remits all the pension fund contributions to the respective social 

security offices, which are responsible for the payments and liabilities relating to the pension funds. The 

Group has no obligation for payment of retirement and other post-retirement benefits of employees other 

than the contributions described above.

The Group also operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the 

“mpf Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for all of its employees employed 

by the Company in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employee’s basic 

salaries and are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as they become payable 

in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from 

those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully 

with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

(c) other items

Year ended 31 December

2010 2009

rmb’000 RMB’000

Purchase of and changes in inventories 872,969 812,712

Depreciation 31,204 34,798

Operating lease rental expense 108,476 90,153

Net foreign exchange loss 5,954 111

Auditor’s remuneration

 – audit services 1,533 173
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6 inCome taX eXpenSe

(a) income tax expense in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income 
represents:

Year ended 31 December

2010 2009

rmb’000 RMB’000

Current tax expense

Provision for the year 70,734 39,125

Deferred tax expense

Origination and reversal of temporary differences (3,350) (4,597)

67,384 34,528

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the Group is not subject to any income 

tax in the Cayman Islands.

(ii) No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax was made for the subsidiaries located in Hong Kong as these 

subsidiaries did not have assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax during the year. The 

payments of dividends by Hong Kong companies are not subject to any Hong Kong withholding tax.

(iii) Shenzhen Shirble Department Store Co., Ltd. (“Shirble Department Store (Shenzhen)”) and 

Shenzhen Shirble Chain Store Limited Liability Company (“Shirble Chain Store”) were entitled 

to a preferential income tax rate of 15% according to Regulations on Special Economic Zones in 

Guangdong Province (Approved for implementation at the 15th Meeting of the Standing Committee 

of the Fifth National People’s Congress on 26 august 1980). On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary 

Session of the Tenth National People’s Congress passed the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PrC 

(“new eit law”) which took effect on 1 January 2008. according to the New EIT Law and its relevant 

regulations issued in December 2007, the income tax rates applicable to Shirble Department Store 

(Shenzhen) and Shirble Chain Store are 18%, 20%, 22%, 24% and 25% for 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 

and 2012 onwards, respectively.

(iv) The applicable income tax rate is 25% for Changsha Shirble Department Store Limited Liability 

Company (“Shirble Department Store (Changsha)”), Changsha Shirble apparel Co., Ltd. 

(“Shirble apparel”), Shenzhen Shirble Mingxing Trading Co., Ltd. (“Shirble mingxing trading”), 

Shenzhen Xiangzhixuan Trading Co., Ltd. (“Shirble Xiangzhixuan”), Shenzhen Ruizhuo Trading 

Company Limited (“Shirble ruizhuo”) and Shenzhen Yuzhixiang Trading Company Limited (“Shirble 

Yuzhixiang”).
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6 inCome taX eXpenSe (continued)

(b) reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable tax rate:

Year ended 31 December

2010 2009

rmb’000 RMB’000

Profit before tax 267,466 174,832

Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated at the 

 respective rates applicable to PRC subsidiaries 60,724 34,104

Withholding tax on dividends declared by the Group’s 

 PRC subsidiaries 4,460 –

Deferred tax liabilities on expected profits distribution by the Group’s 

 PRC subsidiaries (note 22(b)) 2,043 –

Non-deductible expenses 157 424

67,384 34,528

(c) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial position represents:

2010 2009

rmb’000 RMB’000

Balance at beginning of the year 32,266 5,701

Provision for income tax for the year 70,734 39,125

Income tax paid during the year (72,243) (12,560)

Balance at the end of the year 30,757 32,266
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7 DireCtorS’ remuneration

Details of directors’ remuneration are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2009

Fee

Basic 

salaries, 

allowances 

and other 

benefit

Discretionary

 bonus

Contributions

 to retirement 

benefits 

schemes Total

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

name of directors

Executive directors

Mr. YANG Xiangbo – – – – –

Madam YANG Xiaomei – 954 77 – 1,031

Independent non-executive 

 directors

ZHaO Jinlin – – – – –

CHEN Fengliang – – – – –

JIANG Hongkai – – – – –

– 954 77 – 1,031

Year ended 31 December 2010
 

fee

basic 

salaries, 

allowances 

and other 

benefit

Discretionary

 bonus

Contributions

 to retirement 

benefits 

schemes total

rmb’000 rmb’000 rmb’000 rmb’000 rmb’000

name of directors

Executive directors

Mr. YANG Xiangbo – 151 – – 151

Madam YANG Xiaomei – 1,091 – – 1,091

Independent non-executive 

 directors

ZHaO Jinlin 130 – – – 130

CHEN Fengliang 130 – – – 130

JIANG Hongkai 130 – – – 130

390 1,242 – – 1,632
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7 DireCtorS’ remuneration (continued)

An analysis of directors’ remuneration by the number of directors and remuneration range is as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2010 2009

Nil to RMB1,000,000 4 4

RMB1,000,000 to RMB1,500,000 1 1

There were no amounts paid during the year (2009: Nil) to the directors in connection with their retirement from 

employment with the Group, or inducement to join. There was no arrangement under which a director waived 

or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2009: Nil). Mr. YANG Xiangbo volunteered not to receive 

any remuneration during the year ended 31 December 2009.

8 inDiviDualS With higheSt emolumentS

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year include one director of the Company (2009: 

One), whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in note 7. Details of remuneration paid to the 

remaining four highest paid individuals of the Group are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2010 2009

rmb’000 RMB’000

Basic salaries, allowances and other benefits 1,965 1,337

Discretionary bonus 202 79

Contributions to retirement benefits schemes 18 23

2,185 1,439

The above individuals’ emoluments are within the band of Nil to RMB1,000,000.

There were no amounts paid during the year (2009: Nil) to the five highest paid employees in connection with 

their retirement from employment with the Group, or inducement to join.
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9 profit attributable to eQuitY ShareholDerS of the CompanY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company includes a loss of RMB8,034,000 

(2009: Nil) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s profit for the year:

Year ended 31 December

2010 2009

rmb’000 RMB’000

Amount of consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders dealt 

 with in the Company’s financial statements (8,034) –

Dividends from a subsidiary in respect of the previous financial year, 

 approved and paid during the year 40,000 –

Dividends from a subsidiary attributable to the current year declared 

 during the year 18,385 –

The Company’s profit for the year (note 23(a)) 50,351 –

10 other ComprehenSive inCome

Tax effect relating to each component of other comprehensive income

2010 2009

before-tax 

amount

tax

 (expense)/

benefit

net-of-tax 

amount

Before-tax 

amount

Tax

 (expense)/

benefit

Net-of-tax 

amount

rmb’000 rmb’000 rmb’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Exchange differences on 

 translation of financial 

 statements of overseas 

 subsidiaries 93 – 93 – – –

Other comprehensive 

 income 93 – 93 – – –
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11 baSiC anD DiluteD earningS per Share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the 

Company of RMB200,082,000 (2009: RMB140,304,000) and the weighted average of 1,952,054,795 ordinary 

shares (2009:1,875,000,000) in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

2010

Number of shares

Shares issued upon incorporation 1

Issuance of shares upon the Reorganisation 99,999

Effect of capitalisation issue (see Note 23(b)(v)) 1,874,900,000

Effect of shares issued on initial public offering (see Note 23(b)(iv)) 77,054,795

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the year ended 31 December 1,952,054,795

The weighted average number of shares in issue during the year ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 was 

based on the assumption that the 1,875,000,000 shares before the listing of shares on the Stock Exchange 

were in issue, as if such shares had been outstanding through both years presented.

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares throughout the years, and therefore, the basic and diluted 

earnings per share are the same.
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12 propertY, plant anD eQuipment

the group

buildings

machinery 

and 

equipment

furniture 

and other 

equipment

motor 

vehicles

leasehold 

improvements others

Construction 

in progress total

rmb’000 rmb’000 rmb’000 rmb’000 rmb’000 rmb’000 rmb’000 rmb’000

Cost

At 1 January 2009 154,214 48,375 32,248 11,340 241,284 2,196 6,463 496,120

Additions – 831 2,980 329 – 115 20,300 24,555

Disposals (84,270) (2,646) (1,279) (1,734) – – – (89,929)

Transferred from construction 

 in progress – 3,840 – – 22,923 – (26,763) –

At 31 December 2009 69,944 50,400 33,949 9,935 264,207 2,311 – 430,746

Additions – 19,963 2,725 1,928 701 17 45,764 71,098

Disposals (307) (37) (27) – – – – (371)

Transferred from construction 

 in progress – – – – 45,764 – (45,764) –

At 31 December 2010 69,637 70,326 36,647 11,863 310,672 2,328 – 501,473

accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2009 (25,938) (33,719) (22,736) (5,469) (145,676) (408) – (233,946)

Charge for the year (3,839) (4,238) (3,430) (1,655) (21,190) (446) – (34,798)

Disposals 26,136 2,630 1,093 1,514 – – – 31,373

At 31 December 2009 (3,641) (35,327) (25,073) (5,610) (166,866) (854) – (237,371)

Charge for the year (1,119) (2,059) (3,057) (1,268) (23,253) (448) – (31,204)

Disposals 30 33 17 – – – – 80

at 31 December 2010 (4,730) (37,353) (28,113) (6,878) (190,119) (1,302) – (268,495)

net book value

At 31 December 2009 66,303 15,073 8,876 4,325 97,341 1,457 – 193,375

at 31 December 2010 64,907 32,973 8,534 4,985 120,553 1,026 – 232,978
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13 inveStment in SubSiDiarieS

the Company

2010 2009

rmb’000 RMB’000

Unlisted shares, at cost 107,380 –

As of 31 December 2010, the Company has direct and indirect interests in the following subsidiaries, all of 

which are private companies. The particulars of these subsidiaries are set out below:

name of company

place and date of 

incorporation

percentage of  

equity attributable  

to the Company

authorised/

issued 

and paid-up 

capital principal activitiesDirect indirect

Shirble Department Store 

 Investment Limited 

 (“Shirble hong Kong”)

Hong Kong, 

 27 October 2008

100% – HKD10,000/HKD1 Investment holding

Shirble Department Store 

 (Hong Kong) Limited

Hong Kong, 

 21 September 2009

– 100% USD1,200/

USD1,200

Investment holding

Shirble Department Store 

 (Shenzhen)

the PRC, 

 9 November 1995

– 100% HKD100,000,000/

HKD100,000,000

Operation and

  management of

  department stores

Shirble Chain Store the PRC, 

 19 December 2003

– 100% RMB10,000,000/

RMB10,000,000

Operation and 

 management of 

 department stores

Shirble Department Store 

 (Changsha)

the PRC, 

 1 July 2008

– 100% RMB30,000,000/

RMB30,000,000

Operation and 

  management of 

department stores

Shirble Apparel the PRC, 

 21 April 2009

– 100% RMB100,000/

RMB100,000

Selling merchandise 

 and apparels

Shirble Mingxing Trading the PRC, 

 22 September 2009

– 100% RMB100,000/

RMB100,000

Selling merchandise

Shirble Xiangzhixuan the PRC, 

 1 December 2009

– 100% RMB100,000/

RMB100,000

Selling merchandise

Shirble Ruizhuo the PRC, 

 4 February 2010

– 100% RMB100,000/

RMB100,000

Selling merchandise

Shirble Yuzhixiang the PRC, 

 5 March 2010

– 100% RMB1,000,000/

RMB1,000,000

Selling merchandise
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14 inventorieS

the group  

at 31 December

2010 2009

rmb’000 RMB’000

Merchandise for resale 215,538 177,411

No inventory provision was made as at 31 December 2010 (2009: Nil). The inventories as at 31 December 2009 

and 2010 were stated at cost.

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2010 2009

rmb’000 RMB’000

Carrying amount of inventories sold 872,969 812,712

15 traDe anD other reCeivableS

the group the Company

2010 2009 2010 2009

rmb’000 RMB’000 rmb’000 RMB’000

Trade receivables 4,107 4,507 – –

Amounts due from subsidiaries – – 57,965 –

Deposits, prepayments and other 

 receivables 147,480 34,389 9,986 –

Amounts due from related parties 

 (see note 27(b)) – 374,214 – –

151,587 413,110 67,951 –

All of the trade and other receivables apart from deposits for lease of premises with a carrying amount of 

RMB22,781,000 at 31 December 2010 (2009: RMB14,923,000), are expected to be recovered or recognised 

as expenses within one year.

Retail sales to individual consumers are usually settled in cash or by debit card or credit card. The Group has 

a policy of allowing a credit period ranging from 0 to 60 days to its corporate customers depending on the 

customers’ relationship with the Group, their credit worthiness and settlement record.
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15 traDe anD other reCeivableS (continued)

An ageing analysis of trade receivables of the Group is as follows:

at 31 December

2010 2009

rmb’000 RMB’000

Within one month 4,107 4,507

16 helD-for-traDing inveStmentS

the group 

at 31 December

2010 2009

rmb’000 RMB’000

Held-for-trading investments – 151

As at 31 December 2009, held-for-trading investments represent investments in listed securities. Held-for-

trading investments are measured at fair value at each reporting date. The fair value of the financial product is 

based on the quoted price available by the bank at year end which is the amount that the Group would receive 

upon the redemption of the investment. The fair value of the listed securities is based on the quoted market 

prices at year end.

17 helD-to-maturitY inveStmentS

the group and the Company 

at 31 December

2010 2009

rmb’000 RMB’000

Held-to-maturity investments 85,093 –

As at 31 December 2010, the balance represents investment in unlisted f ixed-rate bank note of 

HKD100,000,000 which will mature on 24 June 2011.

18 pleDgeD DepoSitS

Bank deposits of RMB4,500,000 and RMB132,032,000 as at 31 December 2009 were pledged to secure the 

Group’s bills payable (see note 20) and bank loans (see note 21).
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19 CaSh anD CaSh eQuivalentS

the group the Company

2010 2009 2010 2009
rmb’000 RMB’000 rmb’000 RMB’000

Deposit with banks within three 
 months of maturity 90,000 5,043 – –
Cash at banks and on hand 1,645,974 312,871 996,431 4

1,735,974 317,914 996,431 4

20 traDe anD other paYableS

the group the Company

2010 2009 2010 2009
rmb’000 RMB’000 rmb’000 RMB’000

Advances received from customers 389,859 352,530 – –
Trade and bills payables 278,054 280,750 – –
Rental payables 86,959 73,241 – –
Other taxes payables 49,213 61,337 – –
Deferred income 24,834 24,974 – –
Accrued wages and salaries 12,888 12,298 – –
Amounts due to related parties 
 (see note 27(b)) 5,480 2,909 – –
Amounts due to subsidiaries – – 28,405 4
Other payables and accruals 46,282 34,785 2,071 –

893,569 842,824 30,476 4

Amounts due to related parties at 31 December 2009 and 2010 are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on 
demand.

An ageing analysis of trade and bills payables of the Group is as follows:

at 31 December

2010 2009
rmb’000 RMB’000

Within three months 220,866 215,857
Over three months but within one year 44,244 49,229
Over one year 12,944 15,664

278,054 280,750

At 31 December 2009, bills payable of RMB4,500,000 were secured by pledged deposits of RMB4,500,000. 
No bills payable was secured by pledged deposits as at 31 December 2010.
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21 intereSt-bearing borroWingS

the group 
at 31 December

2010 2009
rmb’000 RMB’000

Current
Secured bank loans – 132,032

At 31 December 2009, the bank loans were denominated in Renminbi and subject to an annual interest rate of 
1.41%. The bank loans were secured by the pledged deposits of RMB132,032,000.

22 DeferreD taX aSSetS anD liabilitieS

(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised

(i) the group

The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement of 
financial position and the movements during the year are as follows:

accrued 
expenses

Depreciation 
on property, 

plant and 
equipment

undistributed 
profits of 

prC 
subsidiaries

total 
deferred tax

rmb’000 rmb’000 rmb’000 rmb’000

Deferred tax arising from:
At 1 January 2009 17,640 8,613 – 26,253
Credited to consolidated statement of 
 comprehensive income 3,352 1,245 – 4,597

At 31 December 2009 20,992 9,858 – 30,850
Credited/(charged) to consolidated statement of 
 comprehensive income 4,056 1,337 (2,043) 3,350

At 31 December 2010 25,048 11,195 (2,043) 34,200

(ii) reconciliation to the statement of financial position

at 31 December

2010 2009
rmb’000 RMB’000

Net deferred tax assets recognised on the statement 
 of financial position 36,243 30,850
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised on the statement 
 of financial position (2,043) –

34,200 30,850
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22 DeferreD taX aSSetS anD liabilitieS (continued)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Pursuant to the New Tax Law in the PrC, 10% withholding tax is levied on foreign investors (5% for foreign 
investors who are registered in Hong Kong provided they meet certain criteria) in respect of dividend 
distributions arising from a foreign investment enterprise’s profit earned after 1 January 2008. As of 31 
December 2010, deferred tax liabilities of RMB2,043,000 (31 December 2009: Nil) have been recognised 
in respect of the tax that would be payable on the distribution of the retained profits of the Group’s 
PRC subsidiaries. Deferred tax liabilities of RMB25,178,000 have not been recognised, in respect of the 
remaining retained profits generated by its PRC entities subsequent to 31 December 2007 amounting to 
RMB251,778,000, because the directors do not intend to declare dividends out of such retained profits to 
overseas companies in the foreseeable future.

23 Capital, reServeS anD DiviDenDS

(a) movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each component of the Group’s 

consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in 

the Company’s individual components of equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set out 

below:

the Company

Share 

capital

Share 

premium

Contributed 

surplus

retained 

earnings total equity

Note rmb’000 rmb’000 rmb’000 rmb’000 rmb’000

(note 23(b)) (note 23(c)(i)) (note 23(c)(iv))

At 1 January 

 and 31 December 2009 – – – – –

Total comprehensive income 

 for the year 9 – – – 50,351 50,351

Arising from the Reorganisation 8 – 107,372 – 107,380

Issuance of shares upon 

 initial public offering, net of 

 issuance costs 23(b)(iv) 53,580 1,055,068 – – 1,108,648

Capitalisation issue 23(b)(v) 160,730 (160,730) – – –

Dividends to equity shareholders 23(d) – – – (40,000) (40,000)

At 31 December 2010 214,318 894,338 107,372 10,351 1,226,379
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23 Capital, reServeS anD DiviDenDS (continued)

(b) Share capital

The share capital of the Group as at 1 January and 31 December 2009 represents the aggregate amount 

of paid-in capital of all the companies comprising the Group at the respective dates, after elimination of 

investments in subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the Reorganisation, the Company became the holding company of the Group. The share 

capital of the Group as at 31 December 2010 represents the issued capital of the Company at the 

reporting date.

Movements in the authorised share capital and issued and fully paid share capital of the Company during 

the year are as follows:

authorised issued and fully paid

number of
 ordinary shares

nominal value of 
ordinary shares

number of 
ordinary shares

nominal value of 
ordinary shares

Note (thousand) hKD’000 (thousand) hKD’000

At 1 January 2010 (i) 3,800 380 1 –
Issuance of new shares upon 
 the Reorganisation (ii) – – 99 10
Increase in authorised share 
 capital on 18 June 2010 (iii) 14,996,200 1,499,620 – –
Issuance of shares upon initial 
 public offering (iv) – – 625,000 62,500
Capitalisation issue (v) – – 1,874,900 187,490

At 31 December 2010 15,000,000 1,500,000 2,500,000 250,000

RMB equivalent (’000) 1,276,350 214,318

(i) The Company was incorporated in Cayman Islands on 5 November 2008 with an authorised share 

capital of HKD380,000 divided into 3,800,000 shares of HKD0.10 each. On the same date, one share 

was subscribed by Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited which was subsequently transferred to 

Mr. YaNG Xiangbo. On the same date, an additional 914 shares was allotted and issued to Mr. YaNG 

Xiangbo, 60 shares were allotted and issued to Madam YANG Xiaomei and 25 shares were allotted 

and issued to Mr. LI Zuolin.

(ii) On 5 august 2009, Shirble Department Store (Shenzhen) acquired all the equity interest of Shirble 

Chain Store amounting to RMB10,000,000, which was previously held by Shenzhen Ruizhuo 

Investment Development Co., Ltd. (“ruizhuo investment”) and Shenzhen Hengda Investment 

Development Co., Ltd. (“hengda investment”), at a consideration of the same amount. Accordingly, 

the share capital of Shirble Chain Store was eliminated in preparing the consolidated statement of 

financial position from that date.
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23 Capital, reServeS anD DiviDenDS (continued)

(b) Share capital (continued)

(ii) (continued)
 On 9 December 2009, the Company, Shirble Hong Kong and Shirble Department Store Limited 

(“Shirble bvi”) entered into a share exchange agreement pursuant to which Shirble BVI transferred 
the entire equity interest in Shirble Department Store (Shenzhen) to Shirble Hong Kong, a wholly 
owned subsidiary of the Company, in exchange for 87,751 ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each issued 
by the Company. The transfer was approved by the relevant PRC government authorities on 11 March 
2010.

 On 15 June 2010, a share exchange agreement was entered into whereby Homey Enterprises Limited 
(“homey enterprises”) and Kwan Mei Enterprise Limited (“Kwan mei enterprise”) transferred to 
Xiang rong Investment Limited (“Xiang rong investment”) their shareholding in Shirble BVI, in 
consideration of Xiang Rong Investment paying an aggregate amount equal to the par value of the 
new shares as consideration for the Company to allot and issue to Homey Enterprises and Kwan Mei 
Enterprise 7,940 new Shares and 3,309 new Shares, respectively.

(iii) Pursuant to the written resolution passed at the board of directors’ meeting on 18 June 2010, the 
authorised share capital of the Company was increased from HKD380,000 to HKD1,500,000,000 
comprising 15,000,000,000 shares of HKD0.10 each.

(iv) On 17 November 2010, 625,000,000 ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each were issued at a price of 
HKD2.20 per share under the initial public offering. Proceeds of HKD62,500,000 (equivalent to 
RMB53,580,000) representing the par value, were credited to the Company’s share capital and the 
excess of the proceeds over the nominal value of the total number of ordinary shares issued after 
offsetting issuance costs of RMB70,099,000, which amounted to RMB1,055,068,000, were credited 
to the share premium account of the Company.

(v) Pursuant to a written resolution of the then shareholders of the Company passed on 30 October 2010, 
1,874,900,000 shares of HKD0.10 each in the Company were issued at par value on 17 November 
2010 to the Company’s existing shareholders as at 30 October 2010 by way of capitalisation of 
HKD187,490,000 (equivalent to RMB160,730,000) from the share premium account.



Shirble Department Store holDingS (China) limiteD • aNNUaL rEPOrT 201076

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010

23 Capital, reServeS anD DiviDenDS (continued)

(c) reserves

(i) Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed by the Companies Law of the Cayman 

Islands. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in share premium account are 

distributable to shareholders of the Company provided that immediately following the date on which 

the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as 

they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

(ii) Merger reserve

Merger reserve arising from the Reorganisation represents the excess of the paid-in capital of Shirble 

Department Store (Shenzhen) over the consideration paid by the Company, representing the nominal 

value of the shares issued by the Company in exchange thereof.

(iii) Statutory reserves

Statutory reserves were established in accordance with the relevant PRC rules and regulations and 

the articles of association of the companies comprising the Group which are incorporated in the PRC. 

Appropriations to the reserves were approved by the respective boards of directors’ meeting.

For the entity concerned, statutory reserves can be used to make good previous years’ losses, if any, 

and may be converted into capital in proportion to the existing equity interests of investors, provided 

that the balance of the reserve after such conversion is not less than 25% of the entity’s registered 

capital.

(iv) Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the excess of the fair value of the shares of Shirble Hong Kong 

determined on the basis of the consolidated net assets of Shirble Hong Kong at the date of the 

Reorganisation over the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company in exchange thereof.

(v) Translation Reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the 

financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting 

policies set out in note 2(b).
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23 Capital, reServeS anD DiviDenDS (continued)

(d) Dividends

Year ended 31 December

2010 2009

rmb’000 RMB’000

Dividend declared and paid during the year 40,000 280,627

Final dividend proposed after the reporting date of 

 RMB0.0041 per share (2009: Nil) 10,250 –

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the respective board of directors’ meetings on 31 March 2009 and 

28 August 2009, dividends of RMB10,627,000 and RMB270,000,000 were declared to the then equity 

shareholders of Shirble Chain Store and Shirble Department Store (Shenzhen), respectively. Such dividends 

were fully paid on 20 august 2009 and 28 October 2009.

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the board of directors’ meeting on 17 June 2010 and 17 September 

2010, dividends of RMB30,000,000 and RMB10,000,000 were declared by the Company to its 

shareholders. Such dividends were fully paid.

The final dividend proposed after the reporting date has not been recognised as a liability at the reporting 

date.

24 finanCial riSK management anD fair valueS

Financial assets of the Group include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, pledged deposits 

and other investments. Financial liabilities of the Group include interest-bearing borrowings and trade and other 

payables.

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

• credit risk

• liquidity risk

• market risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk 

management framework, and developing and monitoring the Group’s risk management policies.
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24 finanCial riSK management anD fair valueS (continued)

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, 

to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management 

policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. 

The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and 

constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

(a) Credit risk

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. 

Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.

At the reporting date, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each 

financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The credit risk on liquid funds, held-to-maturity investments and pledged deposits is limited because the 

majority of the counterparties are state-owned banks.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk for receivables from non-related parties, as the 

exposure is spread over a large number of counterparties and customers. The Group believes that no 

impairment allowance is necessary in respect of those receivables based on historic default rates as they 

are not past due or past due by up to 30 days.

The Group does not provide any guarantee which would expose the Group to credit risk.

(b) liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have 

sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without 

incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements and its compliance 

with lending covenants, and to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed 

lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer 

term.

The Group had net current assets of RMB37,996,000 and RMB1,263,866,000 as at 31 December 

2009 and 2010, respectively. The Group had net cash generated from operating activities amounting to 

RMB288,376,000 and RMB582,287,000 for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2010, respectively.



Shirble Department Store holDingS (China) limiteD • aNNUaL rEPOrT 2010 79

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010

24 finanCial riSK management anD fair valueS (continued)

(b) liquidity risk (continued)

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments and 

excluding the impact of any netting agreement:

31 December 2009 

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

Carrying 

amount

Total 

undiscounted 

cash flow

Within 

one year

 or on demand

More than 

one year 

but less than 

five years

More than 

five years

Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Interest-bearing borrowings 132,032 133,866 133,866 – –

Trade and other payables 20 842,824 842,824 842,824 – –

974,856 976,690 976,690 – –

31 December 2010 

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
 

Carrying 

amount

total 

undiscounted 

cash flow

Within 

one year

 or on demand

more than 

one year 

but less than 

five years

more than 

five years

Note rmb’000 rmb’000 rmb’000 rmb’000 rmb’000

Trade and other payables 20 893,569 893,569 893,569 – –

893,569 893,569 893,569 – –
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24 finanCial riSK management anD fair valueS (continued)

(c) market risk

(i) Interest rate risk

Cash and cash equivalents and interest-bearing borrowings are the major types of the Group’s 

financial instruments subject to interest rate risk. Cash and cash equivalents are with fixed interest 

rates of approximately 0.36% per annum as at 31 December 2009 and 2010, respectively. Pledged 

bank deposits are placed to satisfy conditions for issuance of commercial bills and bank loans granted 

to the Group, with fixed interest rates ranging from 1.17% to 1.91% per annum as at 31 December 

2009.

The Group’s interest-bearing borrowings and interest rates as at 31 December 2009 and 2010 are set 

as below:

at 31 December

effective 2010 2009

interest rate rmb’000 RMB’000

Fixed rate borrowings 1.41% – 132,032

Sensitivity analysis

The Group does not account for any fixed rate borrowings at fair value through profit or loss. 

Therefore a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

(ii) Foreign currency risk

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign exchange transactions involving RMB 

must take place through the People’s Bank of China or other institutions authorised to buy and sell 

foreign exchange. The exchange rate adopted for the foreign exchange transactions are the rates of 

exchange quoted by the People’s Bank of China that are determined largely by supply and demand. 

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through cash and cash equivalents and held-

to-maturity investments that are denominated in HKD, while all the other operations of the Group are 

mainly transacted in RMB.



Shirble Department Store holDingS (China) limiteD • aNNUaL rEPOrT 2010 81

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010

24 finanCial riSK management anD fair valueS (continued)

(c) market risk (continued)

(ii) Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the Group’s exposure at the reporting dates to currency risk arising 

from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of 

the entity to which they relate.

at 31 December

2010 2009

hKD’000 HKD’000

Cash 407,008 116

Trade and other receivables 9,548 59,601

Held-to-maturity investments 100,000 –

Statement of financial position exposure 516,556 59,717

The following table demonstrates the changes in the HKD exchange rate during the year.

Year ended 31 December

2010 2009

HKD

– Average rate 0.8715 0.8813

– Reporting date mid-spot rate 0.8509 0.8805

Foreign exchange sensitivity analysis

A 3 percent strengthening of the RMB against the HKD at 31 December would have decreased the 

profit by the amount shown below. This analysis assumes that the reasonably possible change in 

foreign exchange rates had occurred at the reporting dates and had been applied to each of the 

Group entities’ exposure to currency risk for financial instruments in existence at that date, and that 

all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. (The analysis has been performed on 

the same basis for 2009 and 2010.)

Year ended 31 December

2010 2009

rmb’000 RMB’000

Profit decrease

– HKD 13,186 1,577
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24 finanCial riSK management anD fair valueS (continued)

(c) market risk (continued)

(ii) Foreign currency risk (continued)

Foreign exchange sensitivity analysis (continued)

A 3 percent weakening of the RMB against the HKD at 31 December would have had the equal but 

opposite effect on the above currency to the amounts shown above. The analysis has been performed 

on the basis that all other variables remain constant.

(d) fair value

The carrying amounts of significant financial assets and liabilities approximate their respective fair values as 

at 31 December 2009 and 2010, respectively.

(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue 

as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other 

stakeholders, by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing 

access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to maintain a balance between 

the higher shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages 

and security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light 

of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of debt-to-equity 

ratio. For this purpose, the Group defines debt as total loans and borrowings and equity as total equity 

attributable to equity shareholders of the Company.

The debt-to-equity ratio at 31 December 2009 and 2010 was as follows:

at 31 December

2010 2009

Debt-to-equity ratio – 50.35%
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25 Capital CommitmentS

Capital commitments outstanding at the respective year end but not provided for in the consolidated financial 

statements were as follows:

at 31 December

2010 2009

rmb’000 RMB’000

Contracted for 49,944 581

Authorised but not contracted for 127,950 27,268

177,894 27,849

26 operating leaSeS

(a) leases as lessee

At each reporting date, the total future minimum lease payments of the Group under non-cancellable 

operating leases are payable as follows:

at 31 December

2010 2009

rmb’000 RMB’000

Within 1 year 146,155 103,690

After 1 year but within 5 years 565,434 393,466

After 5 years 1,153,077 627,585

1,864,666 1,124,741

The Group leases a number of properties under operating leases in respect of retail shops, offices and 

warehouses. The leases typically run for a period of 12 to 22 years, with an option to renew the lease 

when all terms should be subjected to renegotiation. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

(b) leases as lessor

Future minimum lease income under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

at 31 December

2010 2009

rmb’000 RMB’000

Within 1 year 21,624 16,653

After 1 year but within 5 years 37,971 27,610

After 5 years 11,063 6,312

70,658 50,575
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27 relateD partY tranSaCtionS

For the year ended 31 December 2010, transactions with the following parties are considered as related party 

transactions.

name of party relationship

Ruizhuo Investment Owned in equal shares by

Mr. YANG Xiangbo’s nephew and niece

Hengda Investment Ultimately Controlled by Mr. YaNG Xiangbo,

one of the Controlling Shareholders

Shenzhen Guozhan Investment

 Development Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen guozhan”)

Wholly-owned by Mr. YANG Xiangbo’s

brother-in-law and niece, who is one of the equity

interest holders of Ruizhuo Investment

Luhe County Shirble Inn (“Shirble inn”) Controlled by Mr. YANG Xiangbo,

one of the Controlling Shareholders

Shirble Property Management (Shenzhen)

 Co., Ltd. (“Shirble property management”)

Controlled by Mr. YANG Xiangbo,

one of the Controlling Shareholders

Mr. YANG Xiangbo One of the Controlling Shareholders

(a) Significant related party transactions

Particulars of significant transactions between the Group and the above related parties during the years 

ended 31 December 2009 and 2010 are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2010 2009

Recurring transactions: rmb’000 RMB’000

rental fee paid to

Ruizhuo Investment 1,477 1,457

Shenzhen Guozhan 8,237 5,185

Shirble Inn 198 198

9,912 6,840
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27 relateD partY tranSaCtionS (continued)

(a) Significant related party transactions (continued)

The Group entered into lease agreements in respect of certain leasehold properties with related parties of 

the Group for its distribution centre, retail shops, training centre and employee dormitories.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the above related party transactions were conducted 

on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available to or from independent third parties and in 

the ordinary course of business.

Year ended 31 December

2010 2009

Non-recurring transactions: rmb’000 RMB’000

advances to

Hengda Investment 30,300 32,000

Mr. YANG Xiangbo – 52,476

Shenzhen Guozhan 3,200 –

33,500 84,476

repayment of advance from

Ruizhuo Investment (297) –

Hengda Investment (294,009) (156,687)

Shenzhen Guozhan (64,270) –

Mr. YANG Xiangbo (52,476) –

(411,052) (156,687)

Dispose properties to

Shenzhen Guozhan – 58,270

Ruizhuo Investment 297 –

297 58,270

rental fee paid to

Shirble Property Management 209 835



Shirble Department Store holDingS (China) limiteD • aNNUaL rEPOrT 201086

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010

27 relateD partY tranSaCtionS (continued)

(b) balances with related parties

at 31 December

2010 2009

rmb’000 RMB’000

amounts due to

Ruizhuo Investment 389 447

Shirble Property Management 260 2,462

Shenzhen Guozhan 4,831 –

5,480 2,909

amounts due from

Hengda Investment – 263,709

Shenzhen Guozhan – 57,716

Shirble Inn – 313

Mr. YANG Xiangbo – 52,476

– 374,214

The outstanding balances with these related parties are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed 

repayment terms.
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27 relateD partY tranSaCtionS (continued)

(c) transaction with key management personnel

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s 

directors as disclosed in note 7 and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as 

follows:

Year ended 31 December

2010 2009

rmb’000 RMB’000

Short-term employee benefits 5,406 3,631

Post employment benefits 71 56

5,477 3,687

Total remuneration is included in “personnel costs” (see note 5(b)).

28 immeDiate anD ultimate holDing CompanY

The directors consider the immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Shirble BVI and 

Xiang Rong Investment, which are incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Neither of them produces financial 

statements available for public use.

29 SubSeQuent eventS

After the reporting date, the directors proposed a final dividend on 24 March 2011. Further details are disclosed 

in note 23(d).
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30 poSSible impaCt of amenDmentS, neW StanDarDS anD interpretationS iSSueD 
but not Yet effeCtive for the Year enDeD 31 DeCember 2010

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet effective in respect of 

the year, and have not been applied in preparing the consolidated financial statements:

effective for 

accounting periods 

beginning on or after

Improvements to IFRSs 2010 1 July 2010 or 

1 January 2011

Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting 

Standards – Limited exemption from comparative IFrS 

disclosures for first-time adopters

1 July 2010

Amendment to IAS 32 Financial instruments: Presentation – Classification of 

rights issues

1 February 2010

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity instruments 1 July 2010

Revised IAS 24 Related party disclosures 1 January 2011

Amendments to  

IFRIC14, IAS 19

The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding 

requirements and their interaction –  

Prepayments of a minimum funding requirement

1 January 2011

Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting 

Standards – Severe hyperinflation and removal of  

Fixed dates for first-time adopters

1 July 2011

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosure – Transfers of  

financial assets

1 July 2011

Amendments to IAS 12 Income taxes – Deferred tax: Recovery of  

underlying assets

1 January 2012

IFRS 9 Financial instruments: Basis for conclusions on IFRS 9 

Amendments to other IFRSs and guidance on IFRS 9, 

Implementation guidance on IFRS 9

1 January 2013

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments, new standards 

and new interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application. Up to the date of this report, the 

Group believes that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of 

operations and financial position.
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Quam Capital Limited

Room 3208, Gloucester Tower

The Landmark

11 Pedder Street

Central

Hong Kong
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Corporate Information

hong Kong legal aDviSorS

Squire, Sanders & Dempsey

24th Floor, Central Tower

28 Queen’s Road Central

Central, Hong Kong

prinCipal banKerS

In China

Agricultural Bank of China

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

Shenzhen Development Bank

China Construction Bank

Bank of Shanghai

In Hong Kong

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking

 Corporation Limited

UBS aG

auDitor

KPMG

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

CompanY’S WebSite

www.shirble.net

StoCK CoDe

00312.HK
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